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Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM"”) has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics
of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on
GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the
contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of
the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (“Directors”) of First Credit Finance Group Limited (“Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose
of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement £ &5

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company, | am pleased
to present to you the 2016 annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”).

During the year under review, the Group continued with its efforts in
developing the money lending business despite keen market competition in
Hong Kong. Fund raising through a rights issue and placing of notes in 2016
enabled the Group to further expand its loan portfolio to satisfy the growing
market needs. The Group's average loan balance increased significantly from
approximately HK$402.14 million as at 31 December 2015 to approximately
HK$661.33 million as at 31 2016. The Group's
increased to approximately HK$81.60 million as compared to approximately

December revenue
HK$63.26 million in previous year. The Group recorded profit for the year of
about HK$33.65 million, representing an increase of around 35.27% when
compared to the previous year.

Considering the potential development of the securities related business and
taking into account the interest of the Group and its shareholders as a whole,
at the fourth quarter of 2016, the Company invested in a company engaging in
securities-related business by entering into two share subscription agreements
one of which completed on 5 October 2016 and the other expected to be
completed in early April 2017 as relevant conditions precedent have been
fulfilled in March 2017. Upon completion of the second share subscription, the
target company will become a subsidiary of the Company.

The external operating environment had been challenging with net interest
margin still under downward pressure. In order to maintain sustainable
growth of its loan business, the Group will continue to seek for loan portfolio
expansion opportunities within a balanced risk and return framework, taking

into consideration of its liquidity position from time to time.

The Group has put emphasis on its rising corporate social responsibility. While it
is committed to economic development, environmental preservation and social
involvement, it utilizes its influence among different stakeholders to encourage
involvements in various social aspects. The ultimate aim is to achieve long term

sustainable development for both the Group and the community.
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Chairman’s Statement == /& ¥R 5 (continued #)

In view of the uncertain global economic outlook, the Group will actively ZERZEREERMSTHE  AEBEBUEENRE
pursue opportunities and growth in a cautious manner with a high standard E M SEZEENEA K & EKF » E6H N EH B %
of risk management which ensures that risks are assessed and controlled in & @ WHRCREAEBHEEORE  FHLE
accordance with the Group’s stringent policies. EERER -

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to the shareholders HRNAZRXRZBEZESRHARABRRELEF R AU
of the Company and customers for their continuing loyalty and support. Relying R EEZ# - BB ELBTNE T AL EHK
on the diligence and dedication of its employees, the Group will maintain #HEBRFTHITREAENATHEN  ABRE
its unwavering focus on the sustainability of its objectives while ensuring the S BE & KEK G °

long-term success of the Group.

Sin Kwok Lam TEFHTESE
Chairman and Executive Director BEE M
Hong Kong, 27 March 2017 BB —T-tEF=A=-++tH
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Management Discussion and Analysis & I2 /& 51 & & 247

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

The Group is principally engaged in money lending business which provides
customers with a wide range of loan products and services to meet their
financial needs. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
continued to focus on conducting money lending business by providing both
secured and unsecured loans to customers, including individuals, corporations
and foreign domestic workers. As at 31 December 2016, the Group maintained
a network of three branches in Hong Kong.

During the year, in order to enhance its competitiveness and to maintain its
market position within the ever changing industry and economy, the Group
continued to develop its loan portfolio by diversifying its customer base, in
particular individual and corporate customers from different market segments.
For the year under review, the Group’s average loan balance increased from
approximately HK$402.14 million as at 31 December 2015 to approximately
HK$661.33 million as at 31 December 2016. Meanwhile, to ensure the credit
quality of loan portfolio from time to time and after the change of loan
portfolio composition, the Group put considerable effort in strengthening the
credit risk control by reviewing and modifying its current credit assessments

and control measures.

To capture business opportunities, the Board was of the view that the
Group should strive to expand its loan portfolio. To ensure that the Group
had sufficient funds to support its business development and loan portfolio
expansion, the Company has conducted several fund raising activities during
the year under review, details of which are set out in the paragraphs headed
“Fund Raising Activities” from page 15 to page 17 of this annual report.

The Group has been aware of increasing public concerns of charging exorbitant
fee by a number of illegal referral agents in the money lending industry,
which brings harmful impact on its public reputation. In compliance with the
additional licensing conditions on money lenders licence which took effect
from 1 December 2016, the Group set up procedures in relation to handling
third parties business referrals with care and caution. The Group strives to
provide reliable loan products to its customers and will cooperate with relevant
regulatory bodies to fight against such illegal money lending activities.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Maﬂagemeﬂt Discussion and AﬂalySiS /;E): E@ Eﬁ %j %ﬁ &/ﬁ %:ﬁ (continued &)

In view of the uncertain economic outlook and the competitive money lending
market in Hong Kong, the Group actively pursued other opportunities in other
industries in order to broaden the source of revenue and diversify business risk
with the aim to enhance its shareholder value. At the fourth quarter of 2016,
the Group initiated to invest in securities related business through subscribing
new shares of a securities company in view of the potential of development
of this business field. Subsequent to the subscription of shares made in early
October 2016, the Group agreed to further subscribe for additional shares in
the securities company which is expected to be completed in early April 2017.
Details of the subscription of shares in the securities company are set out in
the sub-paragraphs headed “Subscription of Shares — Asia Wealth Financial
Holdings Limited” from page 17 to page 18 of this annual report.

In the future, while maintaining consistent availability of liquidity for money
lending business, the Group will closely monitor its cash position to explore
if there are any potential investment proposals or opportunities, including but
not limited to investments in bonds, debt instruments, listed equity securities
or project-based investments, subject to the prevailing market condition and
the position of the Group. While pursuing the investment opportunities, the
Group will take into account of the potential returns and seek to balance the
possible market risks and liquidity risks exposures.

Looking forward, the Group intends to strengthen its operational efficiency
and performance. Taking advantage of flexibility in the Group's services and
products and by closely monitoring the capital and funding base, the Group
will commit to balancing the business growth objectives and risk tolerance.

Annual Report 2016
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l\/laﬂagemeﬂt DiSCUSSiOﬂ aﬂd Aﬂal\/SiS % }ﬁ Eﬁ %j 5% &/ﬁ W (continued #&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVENUE

The Group's revenue is derived from interest received from the provision of
various types of loan products to its customers. Revenue for the year ended
31 December 2016 was about HK$81.60 million, representing an increase of
approximately 28.98% as compared with that for the same period last year
which was about HK$63.26 million. Such growth was primarily attributable
to the growth in average loan balance as a result of the Group's effort in
expanding loan portfolio since April 2016, following the completion of a
rights issue in late March 2016. In this respect, the Group's average loan
balance increased by approximately 64.45% to approximately HK$661.33
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 as compared to approximately
HK$402.14 million for the corresponding period in 2015.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis & I2 & 5V 5@ & 20 3T continued #)

Revenue breakdown

W55 8

2015
—E—A0F
HK$'000
FH& T

Unsecured loans EIRIPER
Personal loans AAER 38,945 38,860
Corporate loans TEEXR 17,204 4,395
Foreign domestic workers loans INEREBIER 5,514 7,566
Sub-total INEE 61,663 50,821

Secured loans AREER
First property mortgage loans E—MERBER 10,135 4,132
Subordinated property mortgage loans FEE—MERBER 6,134 8,213
Other secured loans HmBEBER 3,669 99
Sub-total INEE 19,938 12,444
Total @zt 81,601 63,265

NET INTEREST MARGIN

HE_Z-—R"EFTA=+—HILFE £%5H

The Group recorded a net interest margin of approximately 12.22% for
the year ended 31 December 2016, representing a drop compared to that
of approximately 15.04% for the corresponding period in 2015. In respect
of unsecured loans, the net interest margin decreased from approximately
15.66% for the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately 12.36% for
the year ended 31 December 2016. Meanwhile, net interest margin in respect
of secured loans decreased slightly from approximately 12.96% for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to approximately 11.83% for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The decrease in overall net interest margin was primarily due to the Group's

pricing strategy under the low interest rate environment of the competitive
money lending industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 12 & 5Y 5@ & 20 T continued #)

Net interest margin

BRE

2015
—T-RF

Unsecured loans WA ER
Individuals & A 13.00% 14.88%
Corporations 2 9.16% 9.22%
Foreign domestic workers INERBERT 47.15% 47.87%

Secured loans AREER
Individuals 18 A 11.71% 12.24%
Corporations (S 12.15% 17.53%
All loans FBEER 12.22% 15.04%
Unsecured loans A E R 12.36% 15.66%
Secured loans A IR E % 11.83% 12.96%

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES H A A K B b Yz N B 18

The Group’s other income mainly comprises income from fees received in
relation to its money lending business, bank interest income derived from
bank deposit, rental income and management fee income. In relation to rental
income, although the amount was relatively low as compared to the Group's
interest income derived from loans, rental income has provided the Group
with a steady source of income and has always formed part of the Group's
activities. Other income recorded a decrease of approximately 21.24% from
approximately HK$1.89 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
approximately HK$1.49 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Meanwhile, the Group recorded other losses of approximately HK$1.90 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016 as compared to a record of other gains
of approximately HK$3.25 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. Such
loss was primarily due to the record of fair value loss on investment properties
of HK$1.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2016, as compared to a
fair value gain of HK$3 million for the year ended 31 December 2015. Such
decrease in the fair value on investment properties was primarily due to a
general downward trend in the price of the private office market resulting

from economic slowdown.

Details of other income and other gains and losses are set out in notes 10
and 11 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group’s administrative expenses mainly comprise employment expenses,
occupancy costs for its offices and branches and depreciation charges.
Employment expenses include directors’ emoluments, employees’ salaries and
bonuses, mandatory and voluntary provident fund contributions, insurance
premium for employees, directors and officers, etc. Occupancy costs include
rental expenses and management fees, government rent and rates as well
as utilities. Administrative expenses also include repair and maintenance and
general insurance premiums, etc.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis & 12 [Z 5v &% & 2

For the year ended 31 December 2016,

expenses recorded an increase of approximately 3.79% to approximately

the Group’s administrative

HK$19.23 million when compared to approximately HK$18.53 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015 which was mainly due to the increase in
depreciation charges arising from the expansion of the head office of the
Company and staff costs.

Administrative expenses

ﬁ(ﬁ (continued &

HE-T—XE+-_A=+—HILFE  A£EYN
THERAYBREBEZE-_T—RAF+_A=1+—HILF
€ #18,530,0007%8 7T 3 M1 493.79% & #919,230,000
B EEHRARRBRSEESMEENT
EERETHIEMATER-

THEX
2015
—RE
HK$000
FH T
Employment expenses EERX 15,924 15,565
Occupancy costs 8 A B A 1,572 1,770
Depreciation charges nes 1,214 733
Repair and maintenance and others HEREBRHEAMME 379 330
Insurance premium Rig B 143 131
Total #Et 19,232 18,529
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES At 45 & A 5
The Group's other operating expenses mainly comprise impairment allowance N5 [ A EL i 48 & 5 32 = B8 46 JE W B OB B 5
for loans receivable, advertising and promotion expenses, legal and professional 1 ~ BERHEEN X  EZRREXZER AL HAM
fees and other general expenses. —MHEX
As compared to approximately HK$17.13 million for the year ended 31 HMEEMIXHBE—"FT-—HAF+-A=+—H

December 2015, other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December
2016 increased to approximately HK$20.04 million. The increase was mainly
attributable to the increase in impairment allowance for loans receivable on
collective assessment for the year ended 31 December 2016 which was mainly
due to the growth of loans receivable and the increase in advertising and
promotion expenses for the year ended 31 December 2016 as compared to
the corresponding period in 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 12 & 5V 5@ & 20 8T continued #)

Other operating expenses

Hib EERMX

2015
—E—A0fF
HK$'000
FAT

Impairment allowance for loans receivable on 18 51 5 1 1 W B FOR B B R
individual assessment 6,750 7,632

Impairment allowance for loans receivable on FETHERETRERE
collective assessment 2,964 600
Advertising and promotion expenses BERHERERS 3,131 1,600
Legal and professional fees ERREEER 2,677 2,303
Other general expenses Hfh—MRHAX 4,522 4,994
Total st 20,044 17,129

FINANCE COSTS B E A

The Group’s finance costs mainly comprise interest payments for loans from A&EENTEERIELERABYRAAATREE
lenders which are third parties independent of the Company and its connected BB AT B F=FH((BIE=ZHF)HEAEL
persons (“Independent Third Party(ies)”), loan notes, mortgage loans from A E#H  EFZELRUEBRFLEEMELIR
banks with collaterals on its buildings and investment properties and bank T#& X{ERFERRITIRBE XN T B X - BF
overdrafts. Finance costs decreased from approximately HK$3.53 million for HEB8HRHEHEEZE-"Z—HE+_A=+—BRBIEE
the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately HK$1.14 million for the  #93,530,000 LA EHE-_E—E+-A=
year ended 31 December 2016. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the  +—H |- E #71,140,0008 70 - HE T — N
Group conducted various fund raising activities in order to support its business +—A=+—HIIFE  AEBHETLEESE
development. As a result, the reliance on financial assistance from banks and &) T EHEKEE - AmARREYEREITRE
Independent Third Party lenders significantly decreased, thereby reducing the 5 =FME AN K ERKE @ BERBEEE
finance costs incurred for the year under review. BTG &R -

Finance costs

HMBER
2015
—ZT—hF
HK$'000
FAT
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts WITERREZHE 378 1,464
Interest on other loans HithERF S 13 2,047
Finance lease charges MEEEER — 23
Effective interest expense on loan notes EREZBENERAERE 751 —
Total @zt 1,142 3,534

—z-x55% 13
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis & 12 [Z 5v &% & 2

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The profit for the year of the Company increased by approximately 35.27%
from approximately HK$24.87 million for the year ended 31 December
2015 to approximately HK$33.65 million for the year ended 31 December
2016. The increase was mainly attributable to an increase of approximately
HK$18.34 million in revenue and a decrease of approximately HK$2.39 million
in finance costs despite a record of a fair value loss on investment properties
of HK$1.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2016 as compared to a
fair value gain on investment properties of HK$3 million for the year ended
31 December 2015.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$58.63 million (2015: HK$28.33 million),
approximately HK$32.87 million (2015: Nil) and interest-bearing loans of
approximately HK$58.54 million (2015: HK$9.55 million), all of which are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

loan notes of

The loan notes are payable within two years from the relevant date of issue at a
rate of 4.5% per annum. The interest-bearing loans of approximately HK$50.67
million are payable within one year and the remaining amount of approximately
HK$7.87 million are payable in more than one year. The interest-bearing loans
comprise (i) a bank loan with an interest rate of 4.25% per annum; and (ii)
a credit facility from an Independent Third Party with an interest rate of 5%
per annum.

As at 31 December 2016, the net current assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$481.51 million (31 December 2015: HK$171.66 million) and
the current ratio, being the ratio of current assets to current liabilities, was
approximately 5.91 times (31 December 2015: 14.63 times).

The Group generally finances its operations by (i) cash flow from operating
activities; (ii) issuance of equity shares; and (iii) loans and/or credit facilities
from Independent Third Parties and banks; and (iv) proceeds from the loan
notes issued by the Company during the year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 12 & 5Y 5@ & 20 T continued #)

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

In late 2015, the Board expected that there would be an increase in housing
supply in the next few years which would lead to a substantial increase in
demand for private housing secured lending. Throughout the year under
review, the Board further noticed an observable demand from the unsecured
lending market. In view of the potential business opportunities from both the
unsecured and secured lending market, the Board continued to strive to further
develop the traditional lending business by expanding its loan portfolio. To
ensure that the Group had sufficient funds to satisfy the expanding market
and to further develop its business, the Company has conducted the following
fund raising activities during the year under review.

PLACING UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

On 17 December 2015, the Company and Jun Yang Securities Company Limited
("Jun Yang"”) entered into a placing agreement (“JY Placing Agreement”)
pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to place through Jun
Yang, on a best endeavour basis, up to 60,480,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.02
each of the Company (“Placing Shares”) to not less than six placees who
and whose ultimate beneficial owners are Independent Third Parties at a
price of HK$0.174 per Placing Share (“December Placing”). The placing price
represented a discount of 13.00% to the closing price of HK$0.20 per share of
the Company as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the JY Placing
Agreement. Completion of the December Placing was conditional upon the
Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and permission to deal in, the Placing
Shares. The listing approval was granted by the Stock Exchange on 31 December
2015. The completion of the December Placing took place on 8 January 2016
and an aggregate of 60,480,000 Placing Shares were successfully placed. The
Placing Shares were allotted and issued pursuant to the general mandate granted
to the Directors at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29
June 2015. The net proceeds after deduction of expenses from the December
Placing were approximately HK$10.12 million which have been fully deployed
as intended for the money lending business of the Group, as to approximately
65% for the provision of secured lending and as to approximately 35% for the
provision of unsecured lending. The net placing price for the December Placing
was approximately HK$0.167 per Placing Share and the aggregate nominal value
of the Placing Shares was HK$1,209,600.

The Directors were of the view that the December Placing represented
good opportunity to broaden the shareholders’ base and the capital base
of the Company and was therefore in the interest of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

Details of the December Placing are disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 17 December 2015 and 8 January 2016.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Manhagement Discussion and Analysis & 1% & 5v 58 & D

RIGHTS ISSUE

Given that the net proceeds from the December Placing was not sufficient to
meet the funding needs of the Group to satisfy the expanding market and to
further develop its business, the Board considered it necessary for the Company
to conduct further fund raising. A rights issue was considered a better option
when comparing to other fund raising activities such as debt financing and
open offer as a rights issue offered all shareholders of the Company equal
opportunity to subscribe for their pro-rata provisional allotment of the rights
shares and participate in the growth opportunity of the Company.

On 31 March 2016, the Company allotted and issued 3,265,920,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.02 each (“Rights Shares”) by way of rights issue on the
basis of nine Rights Shares for every one share of the Company in issue and
held on the record date (“2016 Rights Issue”) at a subscription price of
HK$0.127 per Rights Share. The subscription price of HK$0.127 represented
a discount of 36.5% to the closing price of HK$0.20 per share of the
Company as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 17 December 2015, being the
date of the announcement of the Company in respect of the 2016 Rights
Issue. The net proceeds raised from the 2016 Rights Issue was approximately
HK$405.48 million, which have been fully deployed as intended for the
money lending business of the Group, among which approximately 66%
was applied towards the provision of unsecured lending and approximately
34% was applied towards the provision of secured lending. The aggregate
nominal value of the Rights Shares issued under the 2016 Rights Issue was
approximately HK$65.32 million and the net issue price was approximately
HK$0.124 per Rights Share. Details of the 2016 Rights Issue are disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 17 December 2015, 19 February
2016, 30 March 2016 and 19 April 2016, the circular of the Company dated
29 January 2016 and the prospectus of the Company dated 3 March 2016.

PLACING OF NOTES — CONVOY ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

On 11 May 2016, in order to maintain sufficient fund for the expansion of the
Group's loan portfolio, the Company and Convoy Asset Management Limited
("Convoy”) entered into a placing agreement pursuant to which Convoy
agreed to act as the placing agent of the Company, on a best endeavour
basis, to procure placee(s) who and whose respective ultimate beneficial
owner(s), if applicable, shall be Independent Third Parties to subscribe for the
4.5% per annum notes (“May 2016 Notes”) to be issued by the Company
in an aggregate principal amount of up to HK$100,000,000 maturing on the
day immediately preceding the second anniversary of the date of issue of
the May 2016 Notes at the placing price which equals the principal amount
of the May 2016 Notes. The funds raised from the placing of the May 2016
Notes was intended to be used for the money lending business of the Group.
On 27 June 2016, the May 2016 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$25,000,000 were issued, raising net proceeds of approximately HK$24.88
million. On 27 July 2016, the May 2016 Notes in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$8,000,000 were further issued by the Company, raising net
proceeds of HK$7.96 million. All the net proceeds from the issue of the May
2016 Notes have been fully deployed as intended for the money lending
business of the Group. Details of the placing of the May 2016 Notes are
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 11 May 2016 and 27
June 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 12 & 5V 5@ & 20 8T continued #)

PLACING OF NOTES — JUN YANG

In order to secure more funding for the money lending business of the
Group, on 27 June 2016, the Company and Jun Yang entered into a placing
agreement pursuant to which Jun Yang agreed to act as the placing agent of
the Company, on a best endeavour basis, to procure placee(s) who and whose
respective ultimate beneficial owner(s), if applicable, shall be Independent
Third Parties to subscribe for the 4.5% per annum notes (“June 2016 Notes")
to be issued by the Company in an aggregate principal amount of up to
HK$100,000,000 maturing on the day immediately preceding the second
anniversary of the date of issue of the June 2016 Notes at the placing price
which equals the principal amount of the June 2016 Notes. The funds raised
from the placing of the June 2016 Notes was intended to be used for the
money lending business of the Group. No June 2016 Notes have been issued
as at the date of this annual report. Details of the placing of the June 2016
Notes are disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 27 June 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had equity attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$925,411,424 (31 December 2015:
HK$476,165,838).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

SUBSCRIPTION OF SHARES — ASIA WEALTH FINANCIAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED

On 5 October 2016, the Company entered into a share subscription agreement
with Asia Wealth Financial Holdings Limited (“Asia Wealth"”) (“First Share
Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company agreed to
subscribe for and purchase from Asia Wealth, and Asia Wealth agreed to issue
to the Company one ordinary share of par value of US$1.00 in the share capital
of Asia Wealth at the price of HK$900,000 (“First Share Subscription”)
subject to the terms and conditions of the First Share Subscription Agreement.
On 8 November 2016, the Company entered into a second share subscription
agreement with Asia Wealth (“Second Share Subscription Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to further subscribe for and purchase
from Asia Wealth, and Asia Wealth agreed to issue to the Company 79
ordinary shares of par value of US$1.00 each in the share capital of Asia Wealth
at the price of HK$79,100,000 (“Second Share Subscription”) subject to the
terms and conditions of the Second Share Subscription Agreement.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis & 12 & 57 58 & 2 T (continued &)

The Completion of the First Share Subscription took place on 5 October 2016
and upon which the Company became interested in approximately 9.09% of
the then enlarged issued share capital of Asia Wealth. It is expected that the
completion of the Second Share Subscription will take place in early April 2017
as the relevant conditions precedent have been fulfilled in March 2017. Upon
completion of the First Share Subscription and the Second Share Subscription,
the Company will hold approximately 88.89% of the total issued share capital
of Asia Wealth as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the subscription shares
and Asia Wealth will become a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Asia Wealth Securities Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Asia Wealth, holds the licence
to carry on Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, (“SFO")) and
is principally engaged in dealing in securities. The Directors considered that
the First Share Subscription and the Second Share Subscription would allow
the Group to invest in the securities related business and it is beneficial to the
Group in view of the potential development of the securities related business.
Details of the First Share Subscription and the Second Share Subscription are
disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 5 October 2016 and
8 November 2016 respectively.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY — TECHLINK INVESTMENTS LIMITED

On 29 November 2016, First Credit Limited (“FCL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a provisional sale and purchase agreement with,
among others, a purchaser which is an Independent Third Party. Pursuant to
the provisional sale and purchase agreement, FCL has conditionally agreed
to sell, and the purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase one ordinary
share of Techlink Investments Limited (“Techlink”), which represents the
entire issued share capital of Techlink, and all the debts owing by Techlink to
FCL and its associates (if any) as at completion at an aggregate consideration
of HK$91 million subject to adjustments at completion (“Disposal”). The
principal activity of Techlink was investment holding and its principal assets
immediately prior to completion of the Disposal was certain office premises
("Property”). In view of the capital gain which is expected to derive from
the Disposal, the management of the Company considered that it is in the
interest of the Company and its shareholders to dispose of Techlink in order to
realise the Group's investment in the Property and to utilise the proceeds from
the Disposal for further development of the Group’s money lending business.
Details of the Disposal are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 29 November 2016 and 2 December 2016. The Disposal was completed
on 20 February 2017 and Techlink has then ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company. The final consideration is HK$91 million and the gain on Disposal
is approximately HK$13 million.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no specific plan for material
investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s investment properties included (i)
Units 901-902, 9th Floor, Far East Consortium Building, 121 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong; (ii) Unit 903, 9th Floor, Far East Consortium Building,
121 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong; and (iii) Units 905-906, 9th Floor,
Far East Consortium Building, 121 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong, all
of which were owned by Techlink, a then wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as at 31 December 2016, and were leased out to Independent
Third Party tenants, including Asia Wealth Securities Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Asia Wealth. The above investment properties were classified as
assets held for sale as at 31 December 2016 by reason of the signing of the
provisional sale and purchase agreement in relation to the disposal of Techlink.
The above properties had been disposed of by the Group upon completion
of the disposal of Techlink, the details of which are set out under the sub-
paragraph headed “Disposal of Subsidiary — Techlink Investments Limited” on
page 18 of this annual report.

The carrying amount of the investment properties is revalued at the end of each
reporting period by independent professional qualified valuers. The aggregate
carrying amount of the investment properties decreased from HK$63.90 million
as at 31 December 2015 to HK$47.70 million as at 31 December 2016 due to
the change of use of a premise from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties as a result of the expansion of the head office of the Company.

INFORMATION ON EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed a total of 41 staff (31
December 2015: 48 staff). Total remuneration of employees for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (including directors’ emoluments) was approximately
HK$14.79 million (31 December 2015: HK$15.37 million). The Company's
remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of performance,
qualifications and experience of individual employee and with reference to the
prevailing market conditions. The remuneration packages of the employees of
the Group comprise monthly fixed salaries, medical insurance, contributions
to statutory mandatory provident fund scheme, share option scheme and
directors’ bonus shares scheme etc. Discretionary year-end bonus based on
individual performance may also be paid to employees as recognition of and
reward for their contributions.
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BIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Management Discussion and Analysis & I2 & 5V 5@ & 20 3T continued #)

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had pledged its properties at Units 901—
903, 9th Floor, Far East Consortium Building, 121 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong, which were owned by Techlink, for a 15-year mortgage installment
loan of drawdown value of HK$11.25 million, whereby the outstanding
amount of the said mortgage loan was approximately HK$8.54 million as at
31 December 2016 and approximately HK$9.17 million as at 31 December
2015. Upon the completion of the disposal of Techlink on 20 February 2017,
the said mortgage was released.

GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by the sum of the adjusted capital
and net debt, was 4.09% as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: Not
applicable). The increase in the gearing ratio was mainly due to the increase
in financial assistance obtained from an Independent Third Party in December
2016, which caused a higher level on borrowings as at 31 December 2016 as
compared to 31 December 2015.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group is principally engaged in the money lending business in Hong Kong.
As the revenue and cost of business are principally denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, the exposure to the risk of foreign exchange rate fluctuations for the
Group is minimal. Hence, no financial instrument for hedging was employed
during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the Group's event after the reporting period are set out in notes
25 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Corporate Governance Report TXE B8RS

Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased to
present this corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December
2016. This report highlights the key corporate governance practices of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The Directors believe that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of the Group and for
safeguarding the shareholders’ interests.

To the best knowledge of the Board, throughout the year ended 31 December
2016, the Company has complied with all code provisions set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard of dealings
set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiries with all the Directors, each of them confirmed that he/she had
complied with the required standard of dealings and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016. No incident of non-compliance
was noted by the Company during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF THE BOARD

The Board has a balance of skill and experience and a balanced composition
of executive and non-executive Directors. It is responsible for formulating
the Group’s long term strategy, determining and approving the Group's
significant transactions and supervising the management to ensure thorough
implementation of the Group’s policies and effective performance of their
duties. The Board is also responsible for collectively approving appointment,
removal or re-appointment of Board members and auditors, reviewing the
remuneration of the Directors and the adoption of any changes in accounting
policies and practice. The Board also communicates with the shareholders
of the Company and regulatory bodies and makes recommendation to the
shareholders on final dividend and approves the declaration of any interim
dividend.
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Corporate Governance Report (£ & 78R S5 (continued &)

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for the strategic development
of the Company with the goal of maximising long-term shareholders’ value,
while balancing broader stakeholders’ interests.

The Company has complied with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the
GEM Listing Rules that the Board includes at least three independent non-
executive Directors, which represents at least one-third of the Board and
at least one of the independent non-executive Directors possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. There is no relationship (financial, business, family or
otherwise) between members of the Board. The Company received an annual
confirmation from each of the independent non-executive Directors stating his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers
them to be independent.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” from pages 35 to

38 of this annual report.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company secretary
of the Company (“Company Secretary”), senior management and the
compliance officer who is mainly responsible for ensuring that the Company is
in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and advising the Board on compliance
matters. Directors are also provided with access to independent professional
advice, where necessary, in carrying out their obligations as Directors, at the
expense of the Company.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management to the executive
Directors and senior management of the Company who meet on a regular
basis to review the financial results and performance of the Group and make
financial and operational decisions for the implementation of strategies and
plans approved by the Board.

BOARD AND COMMITTEES" MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

Regular Board meeting is scheduled to be held four times a year on a quarterly
basis with notice given to the Directors at least 14 days in advance. For other
Board meetings involving discussion and resolution of significant issues in
relation to the operation of the Company, notice is given in a reasonable time
in advance. According to the GEM Listing Rules, any directors who or whose
close associates (or associates for connected transactions) have a material
interest in the contract or arrangement or any other proposal to be approved
at a board meeting shall abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions and
not to be counted in the quorum at the meeting.
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Corporate Governance Report 1B B3R o

Before each Board meeting, a draft agenda is sent out to all Directors at least
three days or such other period as agreed in advance in order to allow the
Directors to include any other matters in the agenda that are required to be
discussed or resolved in the meeting. To enable the Directors to make informed
decisions, Board papers together with all appropriate and relevant information
in relation to the matters of the meeting are sent to all Directors three days
or such other period as agreed before each Board meeting. The Company
Secretary is responsible for keeping all minutes of the Board meetings. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to Directors for comments within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is made available to them for
their review and signing.

The attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings, audit committee
meetings, nomination committee meetings, remuneration committee meetings,
credit committee meetings, compliance committee meetings and general
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in the following

table:
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Number of meetings attended/number of meetings held during the tenure of
each director for the year ended 31 December 2016

BECE-RET-RET-ALERARESRESAERERRY /BAERRE

Audit
committee
Name of Directors Board meeting meeting
§38 zuzEg
4.2 &; &
Total number of meetings held during the year REZ-F-A%+ZR
ended 31 December 2016 St-BLEER
Efngnny 1 5
Executive Directors HirEs
Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman) REREE) 12112 -
Tsang Yan Kwong (Chief Erecutive Officer) ECt(TRER) 12112 -
Leung Wai Hung 2% 212 -
Ho Siu Man & 1212 -
Non-executive Director FafEs
Chan Lai Yee RER(K-F-7%
(resigned on 28 June 2016) NAZTNAER) 88 -
Independent Non-executive Directors BIkRfES
Lee Kin Fai FRE(R-F-7F
(resigned on 18 July 2016) +t AT/ HEL) 9/9 33
Tai Man Hin Tony HNH(R-F—7F
(resigned on 24 October 2016) TAZTHARE) 1 44
Fung Kam Man BEX(F=F-NF
(aopointed on 18 July 2016) tAT/\EZH) 3B 0
Wang Zhiwei IFER-Ff
(appointed on 24 October 2016) FAZ+RAEES) " "
Yu Wan Hei REZ 121 5/5

Nomination ~ Remuneration Credit ~ Compliance
committee committee committee committee General
meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
RzZzBE HWZBE (HERE 48T
EE g# g4 EE BRXE
4 4 12 4 1
44 44 0 - o
- - 12112 - n
- - 1211 - n
- - - 44 n
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are
held separately by two different individuals to ensure a clear division between
their responsibilities and independence. The separation ensures a balance of
power and authority so that power is not concentrated in any one individual.
The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, whose responsibility is
to manage the Board to ensure its effectiveness in all aspects by providing
strategic and business direction. The Chief Executive Officer of the Company
is Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong, who is responsible for the Company’s day-to-day
management and operations. The Chief Executive Officer also focuses on
implementing objectives, strategies and policies approved and delegated by
the Board.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under the Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors should
be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. As at the date of
this report, the Company had three independent non-executive Directors and
each of them entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for an

initial term of two years.

DIRECTORS" CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
PROGRAMME

Every Director, upon appointment, receives comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on appointment and they are kept up to date on the developments
of the statutory and regulatory regime, and the business and market changes
to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities and obligations under the
GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.
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To ensure that all Directors’ contribution to the Board remain informed and
relevant, during the year ended 31 December 2016, all Directors, namely Mr.
Sin Kwok Lam, Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong, Mr. Leung Wai Hung, Ms. Ho Siu Man,
Mr. Fung Kam Man, Mr. Wang Zhiwei and Mr. Yu Wan Hei have participated
in continuous professional development by attending training courses organised
by professional firms or institutions, reading materials provided by the
Company regarding updates on the GEM Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements and receiving induction programmes upon his/her appointment.
All Directors have confirmed that they had complied with provision A.6.5 of

the CG Code during the year under review.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”), at each annual general
meeting ("AGM") one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Such
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as
a Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, the Directors shall have the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to
fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board.
Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of shareholders of the Company after their
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office
only until the next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, an executive Director and the Chairman of the Company,
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a fixed term of six
years. Other executive Directors have entered into service contracts with the
Company for a term of three years. The Company has also issued a letter of
appointment to each of the independent non-executive Directors for a term
of two years. All Directors are subject to retirement, re-election and removal

in accordance with the Bye-laws.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The committee currently comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, being Mr. Yu Wan Hei, who is
the chairman of the committee, Mr. Fung Kam Man and Mr. Wang Zhiwei.
The Group has complied with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules that the
committee comprises a minimum of three non-executive Directors, at least
one of whom is an independent non-executive Director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise, and that the committee is chaired by an independent non-
executive Director. The primary duties of the audit committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor; review and supervise the financial reporting

process and risk management and internal control procedures of the Company.

The audit committee held five meetings during the year ended 31 December
2016 and the attendance record of these meetings is set out in the paragraph
headed “Board and Committees’ Meetings and Attendance” above from page
22 to page 23 of this annual report.

During the year under review, the audit committee has reviewed the Group's

quarterly, interim and annual financial results, the Company’s financial

reporting system, risk management and internal control systems and the
effectiveness of the issuer’s internal audit function. It has discussed the risk
management and internal control systems with the management to ensure
that the management has performed its duty to have effective systems.
The committee has also made recommendations to the Board on the re-
appointment of the external auditors after reviewing the scope of work

offered, taking into account their remuneration and terms of engagement.
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The committee currently comprises
one executive Director, being Mr. Sin Kwok Lam and three independent non-
executive Directors, being Mr. Fung Kam Man, Mr. Wang Zhiwei and Mr. Yu
Wan Hei. The chairman of the committee is Mr. Sin Kwok Lam. The primary
function of the nomination committee is to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and make recommendations to the Board on suitable
candidates for appointment as Directors, appointment or re-appointment or
re-designation of Directors, succession planning for Directors and assessment
of the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
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The nomination committee held four meetings during the year ended 31
December 2016 and the attendance record of these meetings is set out in the
paragraph headed “Board and Committees’ Meetings and Attendance” above
from page 22 to page 23 of this annual report.

During year under review, the nomination committee has assessed and
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board, as well as the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors. The nomination
committee has discussed and reviewed the retirement and re-election of
Directors and other relevant issues. During the year under review, the
nomination committee discussed and reviewed the personal profile, experience
and qualifications of Mr. Fung Kam Man and Mr. Wang Zhiwei and made

recommendations to the Board for their appointments.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy in September 2013 which
sets out the approach to diversity on the Board. For implementing diversity
on the Board, when selecting candidates for appointment, the nomination
committee will take into account a range of measurable objectives, including
but not limited to the skills, experiences, background, gender, age and other
qualities of the potential candidates. The nomination committee will discuss
and agree on the objectives on an annual basis and recommend them to the
Board for adoption. All directors appointments will ultimately be based on
merit with regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board. The nomination
committee reviews the board diversity policy on a regular basis and discuss any
revision that may be required, and recommends any proposed changes to the
Board for approval. The nomination committee considers that an appropriate
balance of diversity of the Board is maintained.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established in 2011 with its written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The committee currently comprises
one executive Director, being Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, and three independent
non-executive Directors, being Mr. Fung Kam Man, Mr. Wang Zhiwei and
Mr. Yu Wan Hei. The chairman of the committee is Mr. Fung Kam Man, an
independent non-executive Director. The primary duties of the remuneration
committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the overall
remuneration policy and structure and the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and senior management including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments and ensure none of the Directors or any
of their associates will determine his/her own remuneration.

The remuneration committee held four meetings during the year ended 31
December 2016 and the attendance record of these meetings is set out in the
paragraph headed “Board and Committees’ Meetings and Attendance” above
from page 22 to page 23 of this annual report.
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During the year under review, the remuneration committee adopted
the approach under Code Provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages as well as
the relevant terms of the letters of appointment of the Directors and senior
it has met to determine the

management of the Company. In addition,

remuneration policy and structure and to assess the performance of Directors.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
the senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set
out below:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z %1,000,0007% 7T
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CREDIT COMMITTEE

The Company had set up a credit committee in 2007 for the purpose of
better management of its credit risk and credit operations. The members of
the credit committee are responsible for, among other things, approving and
overseeing the Company’'s credit policy and monitoring the Company’s loan
portfolio. The credit committee currently comprises four members, namely Mr.
Sin Kwok Lam, being the chairman of the committee, Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong,
Mr. Leung Wai Hung and Mr. Wong Yu Shun Billy.

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

A compliance committee was established in 2010 serving the corporate
governance function of the Company, with the aim to ensure the strict
compliance of the Group with relevant laws, rules and regulations applicable
to the Group, in particular the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), from time to time. Its major duties include to develop
and review the Company'’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board, to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management, to
review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors and
to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report.

The compliance committee currently comprises four members, namely Mr. Yu
Wai Hei, being the chairman of the committee, Ms. Ho Siu Man, Mr. Fung
Kam Man and Mr. Wang Zhiwei. It holds meetings on a quarterly basis for
reviewing matters regarding the compliance of the Group with the Money
Lenders Ordinance and other relevant laws and regulations applicable to the
Group. The Company has adopted a compliance policy and manual which
governs the Company’s compliance matters in relation to the Money Lenders
Ordinance, the GEM Listing Rules as well as other relevant regulations.
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Corporate Governance Report 12 & B3R & continued )

During the period under review, the compliance committee held four meetings
and had no material findings on the compliance issues of the Group.
Meanwhile, it has made several suggestions to the Board and the management
of the Company particularly concerning the recent amendments to the GEM
Listing Rules in relation to risk management and environmental, social and
governance and the Company has acted on the recommendations of the

compliance committee.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
for each financial year, which should provide a true and fair view of the
Company’s financial information. In preparing the financial statements, the
Directors have consistently selected and applied appropriate accounting policies
and standards. The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set out
in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 66 to 71 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Leung Wai Hung, the Company Secretary, is an executive Director and a full
time employee of the Company. During the year under review, the Company
Secretary has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The fees in relation to the audit for the financial year ended 31 December
2016 provided by RSM Hong Kong, the external auditors of the Company,
amounted to approximately HK$0.72 million. In addition, an approximately
HK$0.58 million was charged for non-audit services consisting mainly of
taxation services and interim review.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Risk management and internal control are essential elements of corporate
governance. Effective risk management and internal control facilitate the day-
to-day operation and business development of the Company while maintaining
risk at an optimal level.
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SYSTEM FEATURES: RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The risk management and internal control systems of the Company is designed
to identify and monitor risks from day-to-day operations and it is embodied
by the Board through the audit committee, the management, the branches
and departments and the internal audit function.

The Board recognises its responsibilities to evaluate and determine the nature
and extent of the risks the Group is willing to take in achieving the strategic
objectives of the Group, and ensures that the Company has established and
maintained appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems (“RM & IC Systems”). The Board is also responsible for overseeing
the management in the design, implementation and monitoring of the RM &
IC Systems on an ongoing basis. In this regards, the Board conducts evaluation
on the effectiveness of the RM & IC systems established and maintained by the
management of the Company at least annually. The review covers all relevant
financial, operational and compliance controls and reports on any failure of or
deficiency in the RM & IC Systems. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement

or loss.

The Board has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the RM &
IC Systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and considered
these systems effective and adequate.

The Audit Committee The audit committee is responsible for overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting system and the RM & IC Systems. It
also develops a regular platform to discuss the RM & IC Systems with the
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty to
have effective systems. Such discussion includes the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The audit committee
considers the major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and the
management’s response to these findings. The audit committee also regularly
reviews the findings and opinions of the internal audit function and the
management to evaluate the effectiveness of the RM & IC Systems.
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Internal Audit Function The Company has an internal audit function. The
internal audit function generally carries out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s RM & IC
Systems.

The Management, Branches and Departments The management is
responsible for designing, implementing and monitoring of the RM & IC
Systems. The management implements and takes day-to-day responsibility for
the Group’s policies and manuals on risk management and internal control.
The branches and departments of the Group, as the daily operation units, are
responsible for reviewing and reporting potential risks from time to time to
the management.

Inside Information Handling and Dissemination The Company has also
adopted the Disclosure Policy and Procedures to promote consistent disclosure
practices in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules and the SFO. Under the
policy, the management shall report to the Board as soon as practicable for
any event which may constitute inside information, and the Board shall decide,

if required, to make relevant disclosure in a timely manner.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS
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Risk Control and Mitigation
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Risk Monitoring
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Risk Identification The branches and departments of the Group are required
to report on material risks identified in the Branch Risk Management Report
which is submitted to the management periodically.
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Risk Assessment and Measurement The internal processes of risk
assessment and measurement involve the participation of management in
assessing the risk exposure such as identifying the impact of potential risk.
The management reviews and scrutinises the material risks and ensures
that appropriate controls and measures are in place or in progress. The
management, through consolidating, filtering and prioritising processes,
compiles a Company Risk Management Report to the audit committee and the
internal audit function. Following review by the audit committee and internal
audit function, the Company Risk Management Report would be submitted to

the Board.

Risk Control and Mitigation The management considers the risks and
material internal control defects identified and recommends appropriate
measures to control and mitigate risks as well as resolving material internal
control defects. Such measures vary according to the type of risks or defects
and resources available.

Risk Monitoring The management, in conjunction with the audit committee,
regularly monitors the Company'’s risk exposure and reviews the effectiveness
of the RM & IC systems in terms of risk control and mitigation.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board believes that transparent and timely disclosure of the Group's

information will enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decision and to have better understanding on the Group’s business
performance and strategies. It is also vital for developing and maintaining
continuing investor relations with the Company’'s potential and existing
investors.

The Company maintains a website at “www.firstcredit.com.hk” as a
communication platform with its shareholders and investors, where the
Group's business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may also write directly to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Units 907-911, 9th Floor, Far East
Consortium Building, 121 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong or via email to
admin@firstcredit.com.hk for any inquiries. Inquiries will be dealt with in an

informative and timely manner.
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The Board considers that general meetings of the Company provide an
important channel for the shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors endeavor to be available at the meetings to answer any questions
raised by the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no significant change

in the memorandum of continuance and the Bye-laws of the Company.
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

It is the Company’s responsibility to ensure that its shareholders’ interest are
well-protected. To do so, the Company maintains on-going dialogue with its
shareholders to communicate with them and encourage their participation
in AGM and other general meetings. Registered shareholders are notified
by post for the convening of general meetings of the Company. Notice of
meeting contains agenda, proposed resolutions and a proxy form. All registered
shareholders are entitled to attend annual and special general meetings of
the Company, provided that their names have been recorded in the register

of members of the Company on the relevant record dates of the meetings.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call for special
general meeting. Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general meetings of the
Company as of the date of deposit of the requisition, shall at all times have
the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition, the requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the said date.
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Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, (i) shareholders representing

not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having

a right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than one hundred

shareholders, can submit a written requisition stating the resolution which is

intended to be moved at a general meeting, or to submit a statement of not

more than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any

proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights

as mentioned above to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong

Kong or via email as set out in the paragraph headed “Communications with

Shareholders and Investors and Investor Relations” above.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management EERSREERBL ER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, aged 59, is an executive Director and the Chairman of
the Board. He joined the Group in December 2006 and was appointed as
a Director in March 2009. He is also the founder of the Group, a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Further, Mr. Sin is also the chairman
and non-executive director of National Arts Entertainment and Culture Group
Limited (stock code: 08228), whose shares are listed on GEM. Mr. Sin is
responsible for managing the Board to ensure its effectiveness in all aspects by
providing strategic and business direction. Mr. Sin spent approximately 33 years
and acquired extensive experience in the banking and finance field including
internal audit, finance, risk management and business. Mr. Sin obtained a
master degree in business administration from the Oklahoma City University,
USA, a certified diploma in accounting and finance from the Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants, a diploma in law from City University,
London, United Kingdom and a bachelor of laws (LL.B) degree from Manchester
Metropolitan University. Mr. Sin is an associate of the Institute of Bankers and
the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and a fellow of the Association of Taxation
and Management Accountants. Mr. Sin has entered into a director’s service
contract with the Company on 29 November 2012 for a fixed term of six years.
Details of the service contract of Mr. Sin are set out in the Company’s circular
dated 4 December 2012. As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Sin was a director
of Best Year Enterprises Limited (“Best Year”), which had an interest in the
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO. Please refer to the
section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” on page 48 of this annual report
for further details.

Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong, aged 51, is an executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. He joined the Group in August 2007
and was appointed a Director in April 2010. Mr. Tsang is also a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tsang is responsible for supervising
the overall operation and management, formulating market strategies and
ensuring the loan quality of the Group. He has extensive experience in the
finance field through his working experience in the finance sector for over
26 years specialising in money lending industry. Mr. Tsang obtained a master
degree of business from the University of Newcastle, Australia and a diploma
in management studies jointly from Lingnan University and The Hong Kong
Management Association.
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Mr. Leung Wai Hung, aged 42, is an executive Director and the Company
Secretary. He joined the Group in April 2007 and was appointed as a Director
in April 2010. He is also a director of all subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Leung
is responsible for the operation of the Group, especially overseeing the loan
approval, collection matters and company secretarial matters of the Company.
He has over 19 years' extensive experience in banking and finance field. Mr.
Leung obtained a bachelor degree of business administration (with honours)
from Lingnan University and a master degree of corporate finance and a master
degree of corporate governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
Mr. Leung is also an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Ms. Ho Siu Man, aged 42, is an executive Director and the compliance
officer of the Company. She joined the Group in July 2007 and was appointed
as a Director in April 2010. She is also a director of all subsidiaries of the
Company. Apart from being responsible for supervising the administrative and
accounting matters of the Group, Ms. Ho also takes part in managing the
Group’s operation. Ms. Ho has acquired extensive experience in the finance
field through her devotion in the finance sector for over 23 years. Ms. Ho
obtained a bachelor degree of financial services (with honours) from Edinburgh
Napier University and a master of corporate governance degree from the Open
University of Hong Kong. She is also an associate member of The Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fung Kam Man, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in July 2016. Mr. Fung has obtained a bachelor’s degree
in business administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, a
degree of master of science in financial management from the University
of London and a degree of doctor of philosophy awarded by the University
of Nottingham in October 2016. Mr. Fung has been certified as a Project
Management Professional by the Project Management Institute. He is a certified
financial planner certified by the Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong
and a certified financial planner of The Chinese Institute of Certified Financial
Planners. Mr. Fung has experience of more than 20 years in the continuing
education and vocational training field. Mr. Fung is currently a quality assurance
and accreditation consultant of Stage at Bridal Limited. Mr. Fung is also
an independent non-executive director of DX.com Holdings Limited (stock
code: 08086), the shares of which are listed on the GEM. He acted as the
independent non-executive director of Jia Meng Holdings Limited (stock code:
08101), the shares of which are listed on the GEM, from 1 April 2015 to 21
September 2016.
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Mr. Wang Zhiwei, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director in October 2016. Mr. Wang graduated from Taiyuan Institute of
Machinery (currently known as the North University of China) in 1990 with a
bachelor degree in mechanical engineering. Mr. Wang has been qualified as
a senior engineer in electronic engineering in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") since December 2000. Mr. Wang has over 15 years of experience
in holding senior executive positions in various corporations in the PRC with
businesses involving e-commerce, software development, coal and energy
development and solar power. Mr. Wang is an independent non-executive
director of Interactive Entertainment China Cultural Technology Investments
Limited (stock code: 08081), the shares of which are listed on GEM. From
January 2011 to April 2014, Mr. Wang was the vice president of a subsidiary of
Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 00397), the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From May 2014 to June
2016, Mr. Wang worked as the deputy general manager of China Demeter
Investments Limited (currently known as China Demeter Financial Investments
Limited) (stock code: 08120), the shares of which are listed on the GEM, and

participated in seeking potential investment opportunities in different projects.

Mr. Yu Wan Hei, aged 42, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in October 2013. Mr. Yu obtained a bachelor of business
administration degree in accounting from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and a master of science degree in accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Yu is a fellow member of The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Yu has over 17 years
of experience in the accounting and financial management field and previously
worked in various listed and unlisted groups. He acted as the company
secretary and the financial controller of Oriental City Group Holdings Limited
(currently known as China Smartpay Group Holdings Limited) (stock code:
08325) whose shares are listed on the GEM from January 2013 to February
2014. He acted as the financial controller of Jun Yang Financial Holdings
Limited (stock code: 00397), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, from May 2014 to November 2016.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management & £ & 5 )

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wong Yu Shun Billy, aged 44, is a senior manager of a subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Wong joined the Group in July 2007 and is responsible for the
management of the Group's branch offices. Mr. Wong has acquired experience
in the finance field for approximately 17 years. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Wong was a branch manager in Wing Hang Credit Limited from October 1997
to July 2007. Mr. Wong graduated with a bachelor of arts (general) degree
from the Laurentian University in Ontario Canada in October 1997.

Mr. Wong Wing Hei Andy, aged 37, is a senior manager of a subsidiary
of the Company. Mr. Wong joined the Group in February 2008 and is
responsible for the management of the Group’s branch offices and overseeing
the marketing department. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong was an
assistant manager in Wing Hang Credit Limited from September 2001 to
August 2007 and an assistant credit approval manager in Dah Sing Bank
Limited from August 2007 to February 2008. Mr. Wong graduated with a
bachelor of science degree in accounting and finance from the University of
London in August 2011. He also obtained a professional diploma in marketing
management in the Hong Kong Management Association in August 2002.

Ms. Chan Mang Lee, aged 32, is a manager of a subsidiary of the Company
and a company secretarial officer of the Company. Ms. Chan joined the Group
in July 2007 and is responsible for assisting in the general operations of the
Group and the company secretarial matters of the Company. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. Chan graduated with a bachelor of science (honor) degree in
construction economics and management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in December 2007. Ms. Chan also obtained a master of corporate
governance degree from the Open University of Hong Kong in June 2010.
She is also an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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Directors’ Report &

The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016. All
cross-references mentioned in this directors’ report forms part of this directors’
report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in money lending business solely in Hong
Kong through the provision of both secured and unsecured loans to its
customers, including individuals, corporations and foreign domestic workers.
The Group also derives rental income from time to time as disclosed under the
sub-paragraph headed “Other income and other gains and losses” on page
11 of this annual report.

RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements from page 72 to page 77 of this annual
report.

DIVIDENDS

On 27 March 2017, the Board recommended a final dividend of HKO.2 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2016 payable on 28 July 2017 to
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 7 July 2017, subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming AGM. No shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any
dividends.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2016, particulars of important events affecting the Group since the end of
the financial year, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key
performance indicators, and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group's business are provided in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
from page 5 to page 6 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” from page
7 to page 20 of this annual report. Description of any matter that is material
for appreciation of the state of the Group’s affairs can be found throughout
this annual report.
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Pirectors’ Report % %iﬁ% (continued &)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's business operations and financial conditions may be affected by
risks and uncertainties pertaining to the Group’s businesses, which mainly
include the operational risks, financial risks, market risks and regulatory risks.

Operational risks are those relating to the Group’s internal processes, including
but not limited to potential misconduct of employees and fraud, which
may bring significant adverse impact on the Group’s business operations
and reputation. Failures of information technology systems will result in
interruption of the loan operation of the Group and potential leakage of
confidential information. Operational risks may also result from emergencies
and unexpected events such as natural hazards.

Financial risks include interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk in the
Group’s normal course of business. Interest rate risk relates to the fluctuation
of interest rates of the interest-bearing lending and borrowing of the Group.
Credit risk relates to the ability or willingness of customers to meet their
contractual obligations whereas liquidity risk refers to the Group's ability in
maintaining sufficient fund to meet the liquidity requirements. The above
financial risks may affect the finance costs incurred, revenue generated as well
as impairment loss on loans receivables. Further discussion about the financial
risks is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements from page
103 to page 110 of this annual report.

Market risks relate to the change in macroeconomic conditions and fluctuation
of market variables such as gross domestic product, exchange rates, equity
prices and property prices in Hong Kong. These risks may generally affect
market demands and the repayment abilities of customers, in particular the
customers for personal loans and mortgage loans, which may lead to adverse
impact on the Group’s revenue.

Regulatory risks may arise from potential default of the Group in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the
Group's business and any future changes in the relevant laws and regulations.
Non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations may bring various
consequences to the Group, including but not limited to the revocation or
suspension of the money lenders licence and/or the imposition of penalties
resulting from the offence. The compliance committee of the Company was
established with the aim to ensure the strict compliance of the Group with
relevant laws, rules and regulations applicable to the Group. The Company has
also adopted a compliance policy and manual which governs the Company'’s
compliance matters in relation to the Money Lenders Ordinance, the GEM
Listing Rules as well as other relevant regulations. More information about the
compliance committee of the Company is set out in the sub-paragraph headed
“Compliance Committee” in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” on page 28 of this annual report.
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Directors’ Report % %ia% (continued #)

Further discussion on the risk management and internal control of the
Company is set out in the paragraph headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control” in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” from page 29
to page 32 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has been aware of its rising environmental responsibility to
the community and is committed to reducing the negative impacts on
the environment caused by the operation of its business and enhancing
its influence among different stakeholders. It also strives to maintain an

environmental-friendly business mechanism across its operation.

The Group encourages treasure and efficient use of natural resources such as
electricity, water and papers. Environmental-friendly workplace guidelines are
provided to employees to create a green workplace. In light of the paperless
culture promoted by the Group, employees are encouraged to use both sides of
papers, recycled papers, or choosing “2 pages per sheet” printing setting when
printing documents. Also, the Group nurtures recycling habit of employees
and over 750 kg of used papers were recycled during the year under review.

Further details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance are set
out in the paragraph headed “Environment” in the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report on page 59 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The operations of the Group is based in Hong Kong and the Group itself is
listed on GEM. In light of this, the Group upholds high corporate governance
standards and strives to ensure that its business practice complies with
all relevant laws and regulations in the jurisdiction. Reviews on regulatory
compliance of its business operation are conducted from time to time. During
the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, the Group
has been in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on its money lending business in Hong Kong which
mainly include the Money Lenders Ordinance. The Money Lenders Ordinance
provides for the control and regulation of money lenders and money-
lending transactions, the licensing of persons carrying on business as money
lenders, and provides protection and relief against excessive interest rates and
extortionate stipulations in respect of loans. In addition, the Group was aware
of the additional licensing conditions on the money lenders licence which came
into effect on 1 December 2016. Existing loan procedures and related issues
were reviewed and amended accordingly. For the year under review and up
to the date of this annual report, no material breach or non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations regarding business and operations of the Group

was found.
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Pirectors’ Report %% qiﬁ =5 (continued #&

KEY RELATIONSHIPS
Employees

The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt. The
Group strives to enhance employees’ loyalty and sense of belongings to the
Group through various policies and practice. It emphasises the importance
of labour diversity and equal opportunities in recruitment process. It also
provides staff with a caring, safe and healthy working environment. In order
to help cater for the continuous development of the employees, professional
trainings and self-development sponsorships are provided. The Group values
any feedback from employees and hopes to maintain open communication

with the latter, which favours a good and long-lasting relationship.

Further details about the Group’s policies and relationship with its employees
are set out in the paragraphs headed “Employees” in the Environmental, Social

and Governance Report from page 57 to 58 of this annual report.
customers

Customer-oriented principle is adopted across the business operation of the
Group. Product mix (i.e. loan portfolio) and service quality, which are regarded
as key to good relationship with customers of the Group, are continuously
reviewed with the aim to cater for target customers’ fast-changing needs and
enhance their satisfactions. The Group also strives to ensure that honest and
comprehensive information about its products is provided to customers so
that they can make appropriate informed decision. In addition, as numerous
personal and confidential information is handled and processed by staff in day-
to-day operation, guidelines regarding security of customers’ personal privacy
and avoidance of information leakage are in place.

During the year under review, the Group maintained good relationship with
its major customers, including individuals and corporations. The Group did
not rely on any of its major customers as the relevant revenue generated was
not significant. During the year under review, the five largest customers of
the Group in aggregate accounted for less than 16% of the revenue of the
Group.

During the year under review, the credit period of the loans granted to the
major customers ranged from 1 year to 3 years, which was negotiated on an
arm’s length basis with reference to the commercial practice and the Group's
credit policy. The top management of the Company will closely monitor the
loan portfolio, in particular the loans to major customers, periodically and will
continue to adopt risk control and management strategies while broadening
the customer base.

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the Directors nor their close
associates nor any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any interest in the five largest customers of the Group during the year.
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Suppliers

The Group’s major suppliers are those who provide services supporting the
daily office operation of the Group such as cleaning service companies, office
consumables suppliers and so on. Guidelines were established and adopted
to outline criteria to be considered when selecting suppliers and vendors.
Whether the potential suppliers own shared values with the Group in terms
of sustainable development shall be considered. During the year under review
and up to the date of this annual report, the Group has worked closely with
its suppliers and maintained good relationships with its suppliers.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five years is set out in the section headed “Financial Summary” on page
143 of this annual report. The summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are set
out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme adopted by the Company (“Share Option
Scheme”) as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements and
the JY Placing Agreement as disclosed in the sub-paragraphs headed “Placing
under General Mandate” on page 15 of this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2016 or subsisted at the end of the year.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

During the year under review, the Company has allotted and issued
60,480,000 Placing Shares under the December Placing and 3,265,920,000
Rights Shares under the 2016 Rights Issue. The Company has also issued the
May 2016 Notes in an aggregate principal amount of HK$33,000,000 during
the year under review. Details of the December Placing, the 2016 Rights
Issue and the issue of May 2016 Notes are set out in the paragraphs headed
“Fund Raising Activities” in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” from page 15 to page 17 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the laws
in Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Company’s property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVE

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
equity holders comprising the contributed surplus (net of the proposed final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016) amounted to approximately
HK$213.46 million.

DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable donations and other
donations amounting to approximately HK$120,000 (2015: HK$100,000).

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam (Chairman)

Mr. Tsang Yan Kwong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Leung Wai Hung

Ms. Ho Siu Man

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Ms. Chan Lai Yee (retired on 28 June 2016)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Kin Fai (resigned on 18 July 2016)

Mr. Tai Man Hin Tony (resigned on 24 October 2016)
Mr. Fung Kam Man (appointed on 18 July 2016)

Mr. Wang Zhiwei (appointed on 24 October 2016)
Mr. Yu Wan Hei

In accordance with the Bye-laws, any Director appointed by the Board to fill
casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of the Company
held after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and
any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following AGM of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election. By virtue of the above requirement. Mr. Fung Kam
Man and Mr. Wang Zhiwei will hold office until the next general meeting of
the Company and be subject to re-election at such meeting.

Biographical information of Directors and senior management of the Group
are set out from page 35 to page 38 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, an executive Director and the Chairman of the Company,
entered into a service contract with the Company on 29 November 2012 for
a fixed term of 6 years with effect from 19 December 2012. Other executive
Directors have entered into a service contract with the Company for a term
of three years. Each of the independent non-executive Directors is appointed
for a term of two years subject to retirement, re-election and removal in

accordance with the Bye-laws.

Mr. Sin, being one of the Directors who will retire by rotation and be eligible
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM, has an unexpired term of service
contract of approximately 21 months as at the date of this annual report.

Save as disclosed above, no Director being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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Difectors' Report E S =2 IR (continued &)

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument
policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management of the Group. The remuneration package generally includes
fees or salary, allowance and benefits and so on, details of which are set
out in notes 16 to the consolidated financial statements. Emolument payable
to Directors is generally determined based on the Group’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market practices.

The Share Option Scheme was also adopted for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants, including the Directors, who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Further details of the Share
Option Scheme are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with highest
emoluments are set out in notes 16 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year under review, none of the business or interest of the Directors
or their respective associates competes or may compete with the business of
the Group or had any other conflicts of interest with the Group.

During the annual review, the independent non-executive Directors have no
material matters to disclose relating to the compliance and enforcement of the
non-competition undertaking of Best Year, Enhance Pacific Limited (“Enhance
Pacific”) and Mr. Sin Kwok Lam under the deed of non-competition.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

On 17 December 2015, an underwriting agreement (“RI Underwriting
Agreement”) was entered into among the Company as issuer, Best Year,
Astrum Capital Management Limited and Jun Yang collectively as underwriters
in relation to the 2016 Rights Issue. As a result of the under-subscription of
the Rights Shares, an aggregate of 427,296,000 Rights Shares were subscribed
by and were allotted and issued to Best Year as an underwriter on 31 March
2016 in accordance with the RI Underwriting Agreement. As Best Year is
wholly-owned by Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, an executive Director and the Chairman
of the Company, Mr. Sin is considered to have material interests in, and has
acquired shares of the Company pursuant to the Rl Underwriting Agreement.
Please refer to the paragraphs headed “Fund Raising Activities — Rights Issue”
on page 16 of this annual report for further details of the 2016 Rights Issue.

Save for the Share Option Scheme and the RI Underwriting Agreement, at
no time during the year ended 31 December 2016 was the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

Save for the Rl Underwriting Agreement, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an
entity connected with a Director had material interest (whether directly or
indirectly), was subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in
or about the execution of their duty. Such provisions were in force during the
year under review and remained in force as of the date of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year.
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Difectors' Report E S 2 IS continued &)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the Directors as referred to
in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Interests in the Company

Long position

Name of Director Capacity

Esna 55

Sin Kwok Lam Interest of controlled corporations (Note)

5 B A P A R A AR R 1 (A 2T
Note: Best Year and Enhance Pacific are the registered and beneficial owners of these

shares. Best Year, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and wholly-owned by Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, is interested in 559,856,000
shares. By virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam is
deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Best Year is interested. Enhance
Pacific, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability
and wholly-owned by Mr. Sin Kwok Lam, is interested in 39,200,000 shares. By
virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Sin Kwok Lam is deemed to
be interested in all the shares in which Enhance Pacific is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors nor
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
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SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the persons R =

(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long position

Name

2 M

Convoy Global Holdings Limited
BRRRERBRAA
Convoy (BVI) Limited

Convoy (BVI) Limited

Convoy Collateral Limited

BEEMBERRAR
GET Holdings Limited
BIERBRRF
Lucky Famous Limited
X AR AR

Perfect Growth Limited
ERFRAF

Best Year

o5
Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited

B ERERER AR

47 E

Capacity

5 4

Interest of controlled corporations
(Note 1)

ZHE B R (A1)

Interest of controlled corporations
(Note 1)

REeEEER (1)

Beneficial owner (Note 1)

BEmEEANMETD

Interest of controlled corporations
(Note 2)

2 EE &S (A 22)

Interest of controlled corporations
(Note 2)

EEeEEER(FE2)

Beneficial owner (Note 2)

X X-UNC D)

Beneficial owner (Note 3)

=3 2N =)

Interest of controlled corporations
(Note 4)

Sy B A B #E (B i 4)

Z-RE+ZRA=+—8B REARAKRHK

=
=

HERDFRHERS L BN REBEZSEAER
fIEE336MG AT FEMERMPNEA(BEEFRA

RARBITRABHINOER LXBWT

Approximate
percentage of the

Number of ordinary

Company'’s issued

shares held share capital
HEATES BT

FifLER®E BREBOE S
1,070,400,000 29.50%
1,070,400,000 29.50%
1,070,400,000 29.50%
720,000,000 19.84%
720,000,000 19.84%
720,000,000 19.84%
559,856,000 15.43%
350,000,000 9.65%
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Note 1: These shares are held by Convoy Collateral Limited, which is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. Convoy Collateral Limited
is wholly-owned by Convoy (BVI) Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by
Convoy Global Holdings Limited (stock code: 01019), whose shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. By virtue of the SFO, Convoy (BVI)
Limited and Convoy Global Holdings Limited are deemed to be interested in all
the shares in which Convoy Collateral Limited is interested.

Note 2: These shares are held by Perfect Growth Limited, which is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. Perfect Growth Limited is
wholly-owned by Lucky Famous Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by GET
Holdings Limited (stock code: 08100), whose shares are listed on GEM. By virtue
of the SFO, Lucky Famous Limited and GET Holdings Limited are deemed to be
interested in all the shares in which Perfect Growth Limited is interested.

Note 3: Best Year is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and is wholly-owned by Mr. Sin Kwok Lam.

Note 4. These shares are held by Classictime Investments Limited, which is a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and is wholly-
owned by Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited. Jun Yang Financial Holdings
Limited (stock code: 0397) is a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. By
virtue of the SFO, Jun Yang Financial Holdings Limited is deemed to be interested
in all the shares in which Classictime Investments Limited is interested.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any other person
(other than a Director or the chief executive of the Company) which had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company had not entered into
any connected transaction which was subject to reporting and annual review
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules.

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group are set out
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

The related party transactions stated in note 35(A) to the consolidated financial
statements fall under the definition of “connected transactions” under the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the relevant disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules for such
connected transactions.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the view that the Company has met all the code provisions set
out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules during
the year. A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out from page 21 to page 34 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public as at the latest practicable date prior to
the issue of annual report.

AUDITORS

During the year, RSM Hong Kong (“RSM") was appointed as the auditors of
the Company by the shareholders at the AGM for the year ended 31 December
2016. RSM will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at
the forthcoming AGM. A resolution to re-appoint RSM and to authorise the
Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sin Kwok Lam
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2017

BE-Z-RF+T-A=Zt—RALFE ARQF
FETAMBRARAHMERE - HEXEEARF
ZAEMEMES -

PNETRRIYN
TEER

EXZERARARANAFEEFTABIER LTHR
BIJ B 85+ A B4 2 BDR ST BI AT S A0 ST RIS ST
BREARAMERMHNEIECEEARATROMESR
RARFERE2IBE ZE348 -

RARNBRERE

RABAFRI 2 RERBEREATASE  REAR
AIAIRARGERENENRBESHAA A0
RIDBETHRABREPEL25%TITRARNRITA -

B 2L B

RAFEE  fInEFE (L) G560 E5 0 (iR
EE)ERFRRBEE_T-—R"F+_A=1+—
ALEFENBRRBERAGLZERARRZZH
B o PR EEREME HEETSERTBMERE
ERFEAFAGEER EFEETHEEREK
REFRATEAMENABREREERFBFA

gLERRZE -

REREFE

TE
BB

BE —E—ttF=A=++tH

—E-REEH

51



_ um
"HRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Environmental, Social and Governance Report BiE - T 8RB B RS

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Pursuant to the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG
Guide”) set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is pleased
to present this environmental social and governance report (“ESG Report”) for
the year ended 31 December 2016. This ESG Report highlights the initiatives
and efforts of the Company and its key subsidiaries in the commitment to
sustainable development and corporate social responsibility. For the sake of
materiality principle stated in the ESG Guide, aspects and issues that are not
relevant or material to the Group are excluded from this ESG Report. The
Group has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the
ESG Guide for the year ended 31 December 2016.

MISSION STATEMENT

Engaging in the finance industry in Hong Kong, The Group has been
emphasizing its rising corporate social responsibility (“CSR”) and role in
sustainable development of the community. CSR is not empty talk; the Group
has put considerable efforts in exploring different possibilities to enhance its
positive impacts to the community in economic, environmental, social aspects
and so on throughout the past year. The following shows the five major areas
of concern that the Group emphasises and strives to improve:

Economy

Customers
®R
<
AN
\/
Environment
IRIR

In pursuing various objectives, the Group adopts a balanced approach to
consider all the above areas of concern in a case-by-base basis.
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GUIDING PRINCIPLES

When designing business practice and making business decisions across its
operations, the Group takes the following general principles into account:

— Economy: acts as a socially responsible economic contributor in the
community; upholds high corporate governance standards and strives
to comply with all relevant ordinances and regulations;

— Customers: provides customer-oriented solutions and quality services to
customers; respects and protects customers personal data privacy and
security;

— Employees: promotes equal opportunities and combats any kind of
discrimination; provides a safe and healthy working environment to
employees;

— Environment: adopts the Three R’s principles (i.e. reduce, reuse
and recycle), minimizing its carbon footprint and considering cost-
environmental-friendly products and services; and

— Community: encourages social commitment in any practicable ways;
enhances the positive impacts of the Group to the community.

The above general principles shall be embedded into the Group’s operation as
they relate to its different stakeholders as well as different business decisions
and practices.
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MANAGEMENT APPROACH

CSR STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

CSR Workforce roduce, facilitate and _monito
TtEHEEEAE T T :

Branches/Departments orporate relevant policies and

51T &BFT guidelines into  daily

The CSR commitment of the Group involves participation of every employee
from every branch and department. Policies and guidelines covering areas such
as business operations manual, compliance, staff working environment and
welfare, recruitment and so on are established and incorporated into day to
day operations of the Group.

A corporate social responsibility workforce (“CSR Workforce”) is established to
introduce and facilitate implementation of CSR-related policies and measures.
It ensures that employees are well-informed of any introductions of or
amendments to the CSR-related policies and measures. It also takes the major
role of monitoring and provides assistance to employees where necessary
during implementation of the CSR measures.

In addition, the CSR Workforce facilitates an open dialogue with different
stakeholders and is responsive to any changes in the regulatory factors and
market prevailing situations. Annual review is conducted regarding the CSR
commitment and performance of the Group based on all external and internal
information gathered.
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Based on the findings in its annual review, the CSR Workforce makes
recommendations and suggestions to the Compliance Committee of the
Group, which conducts review and reports findings and suggestions to the
Board correspondingly. The Board then conducts overall review with the aim
to enhance CSR mechanism and policies of the Group.

ECONOMY

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group upholds high corporate governance standards and strives to ensure
that its business practice complies with all relevant laws and regulations in the
jurisdiction. The Group is responsive to regulatory changes and will evaluate
the need to amend its existing policies and practice from time to time. Details
of the Group’s corporate governance structure and practices are set out in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” from page 21 to page 34 of
this annual report.

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING

Engaging in the money lending business, employees have to deal with
payments in the Group’s day to day operation. Potential risks regarding
improper or dishonest handling of money by customers or employees cannot
be neglected. Guidelines in relation to anti-corruption, fraud and anti-money
laundering etc. are established and stated to all staff. For instance, “know
your customer” principle is adopted during the loan application process where
employees are required to be sensitive in verifying the identity of customers to
ascertain whether they may pose risk of money laundering. Maximum limit is
also set for cash repayments and so on. All employees are required to comply
strictly with such guidelines. In addition to the setting out of indicators for
identifying anti-money laundering risks, reporting and monitoring system was
also established.

No significant risks relating to improper or dishonest handling of money
were identified during the year under review. The Group did not receive any
whistleblowing reports from its employees during the year as well. There were
also no confirmed incidents regarding bribery, corruption, fraud or money
laundering against the laws of Hong Kong during the year under review.

ENGAGEMENT WITH SUPPLIERS

Suppliers of the Group are mainly service providers who provide services
supporting the daily office operation of the Group such as cleaning service
companies, office consumable suppliers and so on.
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In order to build cooperation relationships with different suppliers in a socially
responsible manner, guidelines were established and adopted to outline the
criteria to be considered when selecting suppliers and vendors. The criteria
include application of environmentally-friendly principles, protection of
workers’ human rights, safety and health by the suppliers and so on. The
aim is to work collaboratively with suppliers on sustainability all the time in
the sense that workers’ lives, their communities and the environment can be

improved.

During 2016, the risk of suppliers bringing significant, negative impacts
(whether actual or contingent) on the Group’s business is negligible and the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance incidents of suppliers

on aspects regarding environmental and labour protection.

CUSTOMERS
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

The product mix of the Group has been expanded throughout the past year,
which provided more diversified financial solutions to customers. Honest and
comprehensive information about the products are provided to customers with
the aim to help them make appropriate informed decisions. In addition, with
its customer-oriented principle, the Group puts emphasis on quality services to
raise customers’ satisfaction. Members of staff are encouraged to give prompt

response and provide best assistance to customers.

For the year under review and up to the date of this annual report, no material
breach or non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations regarding the
business and operations of the Group is found. In particular, the Group adhered
to the applicable laws regulating its ordinary business i.e. Money Lenders
Ordinance. In light of the additional licensing conditions on money lenders
licence in relation to third party involvement, obtaining and use of customers’
personal data, advertising practice and so on which came into effect on 1
December 2016, review on existing business practice, loan procedures and
related issues were conducted by the Group accordingly.

DATA PRIVACY

The Group values security and protection of customers’ privacy and personal
data. Information provided by customers is handled with due care and in
accordance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations. Guidelines
regarding the handling of confidential information are provided to staff to

enhance information security in business operations and across branches.
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No issue regarding material non-compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations mentioned above was identified or reported during the year under
review. In particular, no incidents regarding infringement of customers’ privacy
or loss of customer data were found.

EMPLOYEES

EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITIES

The Group emphasises the importance of labour diversity and equal
opportunities in recruitment and promotion issues. Candidates with different
qualifications and experiences are welcome in order to diversify the labour
base. The Recruitment Policy of the Group sets out a transparent mechanism
and practice for recruitment in compliance with the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations
in relation to child and forced labour prevention. It also states clearly that
in candidates screening process, criteria such as age, gender, marital status,
nationality, race and religious belief should not be considered to ensure equal
treatment to all applicants. Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in
the Group.

During 2016, no complaints were received from employees or candidates
regarding child or forced labour, unfair treatment or discrimination during the

recruitment and promotion process.
CARING WORKPLACE

The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt. A caring
workplace helps enhance employees’ sense of belongings. Comprehensive
guidelines and procedures regarding human resources including but not limited
to recruitment, workings hours, rest periods as well as compensation are
established. Employees who commit misconducts or violate company rules
may be dismissed according to the Group’s dismissal policy. In addition to
paternity leave and condolence leave, birthday leave was introduced to show
the Group’s emphasis on its relationships with employees. Staff events are
held regularly as opportunities for employees’ team building, with the aim to

unite all employees and create a harmonious working environment.

During 2016, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
regarding any relevant provisions under the Employment Ordinance and other
related laws and regulations, including but not limited to the provisions
governing employees’ compensations and dismissal, working hours and rest

periods.
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SAFE AND HEALTHY WORKING ENVIRONMENT

A Business Contingency Plan is in place to protect the Group from possible
threats and risks caused by emergent situation or disaster and to define
the recovery process developed to restore the critical business functions
of the Group. The Group strives to create a safe working environment as
recommended by the Occupational Safety and Health Council in Hong Kong.
For instance, computer workstations for employees are designed in the way
that will help alleviate health problems like upper limb pains and discomfort
resulting from inappropriate postures. All employees are involved in creating
a working environment that is free of discrimination and harassment, which
can reduce employees’ work stress. Any discrimination based on any grounds
in any circumstances is prohibited. Reporting channel is also provided for staff
who feels being treated unfairly. Besides, to promote healthy lifestyle, a free
body check-up was arranged for employees in past year. Employees are also
encouraged to eat green and healthy and possibilities of introducing related
measures are being discussed.

For the year under review, there were no incidents in relation to occupational
health and safety found. Given the nature of the Group’s money lending
business, the Group also considers the risk of employees working under health
and safety threats to be insignificant.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Group provides continuous professional trainings to employees to ensure
they are equipped with updated knowledge and skills to perform their duties,
details of which are set out in the Staff Training and Development Policy of
the Group. Self-Development Sponsorship Policy is also in place to encourage
continuous learning and development of staff by providing financial supports
to nurture talents and explore various potentials of staffs.

Annual Report 2016
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (215 » I B R E B IR S continued #)

ENVIRONMENT

TREASURE NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group treasures natural resources as a gift from nature and it encourages
efficient use of resources and avoidance of over-consumption. Employees are
encouraged to turn off lights of rooms and electronic appliances that are not
in use after business hour. Room temperature in office is kept at optimal level
and water faucets are turned off when not in use etc. Office consumables such
as light bulbs and stationery are replaced or purchased only when necessary
to avoid wastage. The Group believes that “many a little makes a mickle” and
that all these measures can bring significant impacts to the environment.

PROMOTE PAPERLESS CULTURE

Being a financial institution, most business operations of the Group involve
document printing. For instance, documentations of customer information,
agreements and so on can result in large consumption in printing papers which
will bring significant impact to the environment. In a digitalised community,
the Group encourages paperless culture when and where practicable such as
to communicate and circulate documents via emails. When printing documents,
employees are encouraged to use both sides of papers, recycled papers, or
choosing “2 pages per sheet” printing setting.

CULTIVATE RECYCLING HABITS

The Group encourages re-use of office consumables such as printing papers
and manila envelopes. It also donates used or obsolete computers and other
office equipments to Caritas Computer Workshop for recycling and reuse.
Donation of such equipments helps reducing generation of waste. The Group
also encourages waste separation and recycling. In 2016, more than 750 kg
of used papers are collected for recycling, implying a contribution of over
3,600 kg greenhouse gas reductions.

During 2016, the Group is not aware of any significant non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations related to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Environmental, Social and Governance Report IR1E ~ TE B R E B IS (continued #)

COMMUNITY

SUPPORT SOCIAL ENTERPRISES

Initiatives and efforts of social enterprises should be recognised and supported.
The Group engaged social enterprises for services such as cleaning and pest
control services as a direct and practical way to support them. The Group will
also explore possibilities to cooperate with different organisations that share
same values and principles with it.

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

The Group strives to raise employees’ awareness in terms of social involvement
and civic consciousness. Various updates such as e-newsletters from
environmental organisations are delivered to employees from time to time.
Employees are encouraged to participate in community enhancement events

such as volunteer and fundraising activities etc.
AWARDS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group received the following
major awards which represent a recognition of the team efforts paid by the
Group:

— “Listed Company Award of Excellence 2016” by the PR ASIA Consultants
Limited and Hong Kong Economic Journal; and

— "Outstanding Listed Companies Award 2016” by The Hong Kong
Institute of Financial Analysis and Professional Commentators Limited.

DIALOGUE AND COMMUNICATION

The Group will continue to maintain opportunities for open dialogue relating
to CSR matters with various stakeholders from time to time. The Group
values every feedback and recommendations from its stakeholders in order to
improve its existing CSR policies and practice. Stakeholders may write directly
to the Group's principal place of business in Hong Kong at Units 907-911,
9th Floor, Far East Consortium Building, 121 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
Kong or via email to "admin@firstcredit.com.hk” for any inquiries, feedback
and recommendation regarding CSR-related issues.
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REFERENCES TO THE ESG GUIDE

B\

ZEBRXZM(RR - HERE
wEESD

A. Environmental

A. BRiE

Aspect Al: Emissions

EEAL: BERY)

=

General Disclosure Information on: ESG Report:
— iR AR RERE HegkEAWRE:
(a) the policies; and “Environment — Treasure Natural
B R Resources & Cultivate Recycling

Habits” (page 59)
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations | 321 — EEXRERLIEERE

that have a significant impact on the issuer RHEAEEBIEE)
BFHBETABEATCENEE EZE LA

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste

BRBERMBEREBIN  MAKRTHEOHES -

EEREBEEBEREYNELS
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2: ERER
General Disclosure Policies on efficient use of resources including | ESG Report:
—RiKE energy, water and other raw materials RE - HEREARS:

BRSERER(BIEER KR HMEMED 8B %
"Environment — Treasure Natural
Resources, Promote Paperless
Culture & Cultivate Recycling

Habits” (page 59)
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Aspect A3: The Environment and

Natural Resources
BEA3:RERRKRER

General Disclosure

— BT

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact
on the environment and natural resources
BIEBITAHBRERRAERENEAZEN

B 5

ESG Report:
RE HBREREE:

“Environment — Treasure Natural
Resources, Promote Paperless
Culture & Cultivate Recycling
Habits” (page 59)
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A IRBERRBAS
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B. Social
B. #&

Aspect B1: Employment
[BEBI: B E

General Disclosure

—REE

Information on:

AT :

(@) the policies; and

BE &

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
BTHETABERTENEBEZERAN
0 & &

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare

EHREMERRE  BERSA  TIERS - ®RH -
FE#E - ol R R E MRS REF

ESG Report:
BB HakBEREE:

"Employees — Employment
Opportunities & Caring
Workplace” (page 57)
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Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[BHEB2: EREAL R

General Disclosure

— R

Information on:

PR

(a) the policies; and

B M

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
BFHBTABERTENEEEERAD
)& K

relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards
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ESG Report:
R -HEREBRSE

“Employees — Safe and Healthy
Working Environment”
(page 58)

[EE — RERBEHTIFERE]
(£588)

Aspect B3: Development and Training
[E B3 : FREKIF

General Disclosure

—REE

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description of
training activities
ERRAEERTIERENMNZ R RAENBR -
it 55 5IDE B

ESG Report:
BB HakBERABE:

"Employees — Professional
Development” (page 58)
[fEE — Hx#REI(F588)
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Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EMEB4 : &5 T A

General Disclosure

—REE

Information on:

AT :

(@) the policies; and

158 N

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
BTHETABERTZENEBEZERAN
8 & K

relating to preventing child and forced labour
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ESG Report:
B dHakBEAREE:

"Employees — Employment
Opportunities” (page 57)
BB — RIEHEI(FE57H)

Aspect B5: Supply Chain managemen
[ETEBS: EHEE R

General Disclosure

—RWE

Policies on managing environmental and social risks
of the supply chain
EIEMESE AR IE AL g R/ b R

ESG Report:
RE - HeakBRHE:

“Economy — Engagement with
Suppliers” (page 55 to page
56)
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6: EmE

General Disclosure

— R E

Information on:

W

(a) the policies; and

BE: &

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
BFHBTABERTENEEEERMAD

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress
ERMREERTNRSNERERZ Y  BS &
BRLBEEURBRAE

ESG Report:
RE HeakBERHE:

“Customers — Products and
Services & Data Privacy”
(page 56 to page 57)
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[EmB7: R&E S

E-EREMERBRAA

General Disclosure

— R

Information on:

PR

(a) the policies; and

B M

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
BFHBTABERTENEEEERAD
)& K

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering

BRI 95 RFRARE

ESG Report:
R -HEREBRSE

“Economy — Anti-Money
Laundering” (page 55)
[48 7 — R EEEE|(E558)

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EMB8 : i @mIKE

General Disclosure

— R E

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities takes into
consideration communities’ interests
ERUME2ERTHREEMTHLRTEZEMER
HEBBZHEZELRN RO BR

ESG Report:
RE - HakBREE:

“"Community” (page 60)
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Independent Auditors’ Report & 11 1 8 6f 3R 5

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited
liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of First Credit Finance
Group Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 72 to
142, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Annual Report 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report & 17 & #EI 3R 5 continued )

FRBAFTESESNEXHE T - B AR
EUBHRRPZEENEIR - EENBFEBE
EUBHRREBLEFERRLTKER M

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of

the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. The
key audit matters we identified and how our audit addressed the key audit

matters are set out below.

(Refer to notes 6(A) and 24 to the consolidated financial
statements)

(2[4 & B 75 8 & I AL 6(A) K 24)

The Group had loans receivable from customers amounting
to HK$881,992,605 as at 31 December 2016.
ESEBR T R"FTA=T-—BZRKEFEXRE
881,992,605/ JT ©

As part of the Group's credit policy, management assessed
the recoverability of each loan receivable individually and
each portfolio of loans receivable with similar credit risk
characteristics collectively.

R EXBEGEEREXZIHD  EEESRFMEEEUE
ERREBNEHEEARNEKER RS ERKERES 2A
W m ot o

As at 31 December 2016, the impairment allowance made for
doubtful loans receivable amounted to HK$10,492,669.
RZE—ARF+ZA=1T—H BERREERIELZ R
B % 5 510,492,669 7T °

ERUEFEEBARER - TERINARE
HEERBEENBHMAERBRELSERS
m -

We understood and tested the key controls over the
impairment of loans receivable and focused on:

B & 0 Rt R e e B OB (B 2 B A A R I 3 O A

— The identification of impairment events;

—  FBRIREERM:

— The assessment and approval processes for the
determination of the extent to which impairment should
be made;

— EERELRERZENMGRIZERE:

— The governance over the impairment assessments
processes, including the continuous re-assessment by
management that the impairment policy is still calibrated
in a way which is appropriate for the impairment risks
in the Group's loan portfolios.

— REMHEREZEE EEEEEREBRRERERE
BREEAH ESEEEREEZRERRNSBEE
ETEHE -



FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Independent Auditors’ Report & 17 £ 1B ¥R S5 (continued #)

The identification of doubtful debts in the individual
assessments requires significant judgement about whether
objective evidence for impairment exists, taking into
consideration the current creditworthiness and the past
collection history of each debtor. It also requires significant
estimates when determining the estimated recoverable
amount of the doubtful loans receivable.
BYNEPZRARANFTECEERANZERAERBAES
KRR W RSN AT IR TR BB FER BURER B
TEHE R H B - 2 F FEUCR BR B3R 2 i 5 AT U [ & &8 B 7R
R E ARG

For the collective assessments, management also made
assumptions and judgements in respect of the calculation of
impairment rates of each portfolio of loans receivable and the
impact of external factors such as market interest rates.
HERFENT  EEETRAESBRERES 2RE
ERMBEZR(MHISHE) 2 EELRR -
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In addition, we performed the following substantive
procedures:
ot EEETUTEEERF

For a sample of impaired loans, we performed testing to
ascertain whether the loss event had been identified in a
timely manner and examined the expected future cash flows
and the valuation of collateral held, if any, and compared
management'’s estimate to external evidence where applicable.
EEHREEFRNBRAETAS  UAERAEBEREHES
W 1% o Al M e B TR BA R 2R IR € 0 B P+ R am (A ) 2
1B - 3 b BB IR B SR RE IR (fis 38 ) P /B 2 fil &t e

For a sample of performing loans (i.e. the loans that are not
considered to be doubtful by management), we performed
testing to ascertain whether any impairment events had
occurred including consideration of forbearance were relevant.
We considered the payment performance and financial
condition of these customers and other relevant factors.
EEHRHERANEEERALFBREZEF) KA
TR NERRSHLEEMRESH  BEERTHE
- EZENEZAETLERNKE KA R K& E A48
B A= -

We tested the completeness and accuracy of information and
calculations applied in the collective assessment model.
HMAARERIGEXMEAENEAE 2 B RE
T o

We assessed the reasonableness of the assumptions and
parameters adopted in the collective assessment model,
including the rate of default and adjustment for changes in
economic conditions, which are based on both historical data
and management’s estimation of future market prospects, by
comparing to externally available market data and considering
the sensitivity of the parameters adopted in the model.
BRFAEEBTERAMEABRRR2B 26BN 85
HREFMERGBEGEEDRAE  EDERELRER
IR B AR R T I5 AR 2 b a0 BB E N A S T 5 BE
ETERRAREXARN2 B EUREFRE -
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Independent Auditors’ Report & 17 & #EI 3R 5 continued )

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other Information
comprises all the information in First Credit Finance Group Limited’s 2016
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the Other

Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information identified above and, in doing
so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their responsibilities
for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

ii,\,\ﬁﬁtﬁﬂ HEHeRE RS
SEERRPD_Z-—RFFRAFEHR - ETE
& ?v?’:\.ﬁﬁ&‘#&%%&ﬁﬁ%*?%(ﬁﬁi#ﬁi g
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BERERR BEEAREZER - R HHE

EEREEMARE -
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Independent Auditors’ Report & 17 £ 1B ¥R S5 (continued #)

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on

Annual Report 2016
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Independent Auditors’ Report & 17 & #EI 3R 5 continued )

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

structure and content of the

o Evaluate the overall presentation,

consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Mr. Wong Tak Man, Stephen.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2017
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income $F 8 B R 2t 2ERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ_T— R XE+T-_A=1+—HILFE

2015
—T—hF
Note HK$
Bt = Vo
Revenue I Z5 9 81,601,121 63,264,700
Other income Hfh g A 10 1,489,567 1,891,240
Other gains and losses Hh s ke 1 (1,898,911) 3,248,284
81,191,777 68,404,224
Administrative expenses TERAX (19,232,035) (18,528,906)
Other operating expenses HisE (20,043,705) (17,129,492)
Profit from operations FERN 41,916,037 32,745,826
Finance costs M5 E R 12 (1,141,893) (3,533,726)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary S — B A Al e — 286,818
Profit before tax B % mi it F 13 40,774,144 29,498,918
Income tax expense FT 15 % 2 14 (7,127,652) (4,626,212)
Profit for the year £ it F 33,646,492 24,872,706
Other comprehensive income, net of tax H{th 2 E U A (30BR
HIE)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: & E#H 7 A E 18z
HIE A
Gain on property revaluation Y) 2 & f I 2 — 5,203,775
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEEBANEE 33,646,492 30,076,481
HK cents
A&l
(restated)
(g=31)
Earnings per share BREF
Basic BN 18 1.19 8.23
Diluted g 18 N/A 7 & H N/A 3@ A

72 Annual Report 2016



FE—EHEMEERRAF

consolidated Statement of Financial Position {2 & 81 iR R+«

At 31 December 2016 RZ-ZZE—X~E+=-A=+—H

2015
—ET—A8F
Note HK$
B 5 7T
Non-current assets ERBHESE
Property, plant and equipment L 19 1,565,195 694,850
Investment properties B &Y 20 — 63,900,000
Leasehold land under finance leases BMEROTHE L b 21 1,328,694 15,425,168
Loans receivable FE W E K 24 439,202,306 224,107,674
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESREE 22 900,000 —
Deferred tax assets RIEFIHE & 28 905,748 535,470
Total non-current assets ERBEERTE 443,901,943 304,663,162
Current assets HRENE E
Loans receivable FE W E K 24 442,790,299 154,137,080
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ENRE - EE2 Rk
H fth f& W 5k 18 1,400,174 1,777,971
Bank and cash balances RITRE DB 58,634,302 28,333,804
502,824,775 184,248,855
Assets classified as held for sale DERFIELEEE 25 76,800,585 —
Total current assets MBEEARE 579,625,360 184,248,855
Current liabilities HENE &
Accruals and other payables FE 5T & A K& H fth FE AT
KRIE 3,569,445 1,887,363
Interest-bearing loans STEER 26 58,537,056 9,553,598
Loan notes ERER 27 32,873,178 —
Current tax payable P& 1< B HA 75 18 2,956,791 1,151,062
97,936,470 12,592,023
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified — £29) 48 A5 {EH &
as held for sale BEEEMEBEN
=N 25 179,289 —
Total current liabilities mEBERTE 98,115,759 12,592,023
Net current assets mEBEEFEE 481,509,601 171,656,832
Total assets less current liabilities BEEFRRBERE 925,411,544 476,319,994
Non-current liabilities EFEHERE
Deferred tax liabilities IRIE T IE B E 28 120 154,156
Total non-current liabilities ERBEAELE 120 154,156
NET ASSETS BEFE 925,411,424 476,165,838

—E-NEER



FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position #7 5 84 75 #R 370 3% (continued )
At 31 December 2016 R-E—~E+=-HF=+—H

2015
—ET—RF
Note HK$
Bt = Vo
Capital and reserves BXRRGHEE
Share capital & A< 29 72,576,000 6,048,000
Reserves & s 31 847,631,649 470,117,838
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive Bl ERFELE
income and accumulated in equity relating to BEREMEE
assets classified as held for sale WA R RetiEw=
BRz2 25 5,203,775 =
TOTAL EQUITY 2 925,411,424 476,165,838

Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2017 and are signed onits R-Z—+FE=A-++HRKEETSH L I H

behalf by: THEEREXEE:
Tsang Yan Kwong Ho Siu Man

=R e ik 8%

Director Director

BF BEF
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consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity RS RE &5 & &) %

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B Z—T— X "E+-_A=1+—HILFE

table to owners of the Company

FATHAANELS

Amounts
recognised

in other
comprehensive
income and
accumulated in
equity relating

to assets
Property classified as Proposed
Share Share Capital Contributed revaluation  held for sale Retained final
capital premium reserve surplus reserve (note 25) profits dividend
RS EBRRE
HEEERKH
2EKARRE
BaERzeH
MEEGRE (Mi3E25)
HK$ HK$
BT B
At 1 January 2015 RZZE-RE-A-A 14,400,000 112,865,637 141,829,615 — — — 69,902,904 — 338,998,156
Total comprehensive income for the year FREERALE — — — — 5203775 — 24,872,706 — 30,076,481
Issue of shares under rights issue (note 29(a)) RIBH R ITRE
(K #29(a)) 43,200,000 59,616,000 — - — - - — 102,816,000
Share premium reduction B 13 % 1B A — (168,878,070) — 168,878,070 - — - — -
Capital reorganisation (note 29(b)) PR & 48 (B 729(b)) (51,840,000) — — 51,840,000 — — — — —
Issue of shares on placing (note 29(c)) EEREIRH
(K £29(c) 288,000 8,006,400 — - — - - — 8,294,400
Share issue expenses R BT R — (4,019,199 — — — — — — (4,019,199
Changes in equity for the year FRERED (8,352,000) (105,274,869) — 220718070 5203775 — 24,872,706 — 137,167,682
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZZT-RE
+ZA=t-Ak
ZE-RE5-A-H 6,048,000 7,590,768 141,829,615 220,718,070 5,203,775 — 94,775,610 — 476,165,838
Total comprehensive income for the year FREENAEE - - — - — — 33,646,492 — 33,646,492
Issue of shares on placing (note 29(e)) EERZTRH
(B 29(e)) 1,209,600 9,313,920 - — - — - — 10,523,520
Issue of shares under rights issue R R B TR
(note 29(f)) (B ££29(f)) 65,318,400 349,453,440 - — - — - — 414,771,840
Share issue expenses RO ETRAR —  (9,696,266) - - - - - —  (9,696,266)
Redlassification relating to assets classified BRNBARKELELE
as held for sale (note 25) B35 8 (H52s) - — - —  (5.203,775) 5,203,775 - — -
2016 proposed final dividend (note 17) ZT-RERERERE
(B &£17) — — —  (7,257,600) — — — 1,257,600 —
Changes in equity for the year FRRELS 66,528,000 349,071,094 —  (7,257,600)  (5,203,775) 5,203,775 33,646,492 7,257,600 449,245,586
At 31 December 2016 R-E-R%
+-A=1+—-8 72,576,000 356,661,862 141,829,615 213,460,470 — 5,203,775 128,422,102 7,257,600 925,411,424




FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows =&

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE-T—AF+_A=+—HIEFE

2015
—E—A8F
Note HK$
k= 7T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES {EEXBEMRLAFE
Profit before tax B B4 Bl s A 29,498,918
Adjustments for: BATRIEFE:
Depreciation e 667,596
Amortisation of leasehold land under finance BEMHAOTHE
leases 3 5K 64,899
Bank interest income |ITH B WA (312)
Finance costs M58 A 3,533,726
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BER
equipment B (248,284)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary H & — KB AR
U z& (286,818)
Fair value losses/(gains) on investment KEMERTE
properties w18 (e ) (3,000,000)
Net impairment loss on loans receivable JFE W E RO (B B 18
5 8,599,549
Recoveries of loans receivable impaired or W 8] B 18 3k il 58
written off 7 FE U B 3K (368,026)
Operating profit before working capital changes EEEEIAILE
il 38,461,248
Increase in loans receivable FE W B SR8 N (49,607,442)

Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other

BNRIE  RERk

receivables H b & W 5K IE
VR 1,887,805

Increase in accruals and other payables FEETE A R E A
& {51 3% T8 1 A0 80,717
Cash used in operations EBFAE S (9,177,672)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENBEAFEH (3,027,308)

Net cash used in operating activities

REXBMAREFE

(12,204,980)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

BREFINRERE

Bank interest received B R 1T A B 312
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME BER
B (90,796)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets WHEHLESMEE =
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HEME - WERRE
equipment P18 5K 18 1,851,200
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & — R B R R TS
IR 1,079,266
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing BEZEE(FTA)/
activities ELER S FHE 2,839,982
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows #3255 IR % /A = 3% (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—T—A"F+_A=+—HILFE

2015
—T—hF
Note HK$
B = 7T

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BREZHHRETE
Proceeds from placing of new shares BEEFRMTSHKIE  29(e) 8,294,400
Proceeds from rights issue A% BT 158 2K I8 29(f) 102,816,000

Proceeds from issuance of loan notes BEITERER

Fr 15 318 —
Share issue expenses paid BRRHBETHREZ (4,019,199)
Interest-bearing loans raised HMEFEER 29,495,886

Repayment of interest-bearing loans

BEFRER

(80,334,183)

Repayment of finance lease payable BEEMNEE
HERE (212,500)

Interest paid EEREESS (3,593,753)
Net cash generated from financing activities BB EEE AR € F5E 52,446,651
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH HeERREEEY

EQUIVALENTS % | 43,081,653
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FVEER

BEGINNING OF YEAR HE%EY (14,747,849)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF ERRLR

YEAR He%EY 28,333,804
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH R&REL2%ZEY

EQUIVALENTS HEHERDW
Bank and cash balances RIT MR & AR 28,333,804

T—RNFFR



FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 5= & 81 #5 R R M 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-ZT—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

First Credit Finance Group Limited (“Company”) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and duly continued in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability under the laws of Bermuda. The address of
its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda. The address of its principal place of business was changed
from Units 909-911, 9/F., Far East Consortium Building, 121 Des Voeux
Road Central, Hong Kong to Units 907-911, 9/F., Far East Consortium
Building, 121 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong during the year. The
Company's shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM")
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Annual Report 2016
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FE—EHEMEERRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= S 87 75 3R < MY 5T (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &}

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. Of these, the following new or revised HKFRS
is relevant to the Group:

The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify, rather than significantly
change, existing HKAS 1 requirements. The amendments clarify
various presentation issues relating to:

— assessment of materiality versus minimum disclosure

requirements of a standard;

— disaggregation of specific line items in the statement(s)
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the
statement of financial position. There is also new guidance
on the use of subtotals;

— confirmation that the notes do not need to be presented
in a particular order; and

— presentation of other comprehensive income items arising

from equity-accounted associates and joint ventures.

None of these developments have had a material effect on how
the Group's results and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 S 87 ¥ 38 72 By =T (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-ZT—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2016. These new and revised HKFRSs include
the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure initiative

BRAEBENFIRASRER  THWEUEFT L)

AEEYEREFEAEEMEHAK
RIE—RFEF-A—BHRBOFBF
JE 4 B HT T R B R] BB B S 1R
EAER o 40N AT R B9 T AT RSB RT
EEVBRELEAATREAEEE
7 -

1 January 2017
—E—+F—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised 1 January 2017

losses

BR G EANBRRAEH A AEE B EEREERBEEE (BFTA)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
BAUBREENF RS TE
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

ERUMBHMEENF ISR RERAZTS SN EA

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with

HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
BB M RS B A5 (B a] ) B E 7 B 75 i & E B £ 45%
RBREHN—HERNESUBRERRESRERTA
HKFRS 16 Leases
BEMBRELENFEI6HEE
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and
HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures:
Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture
BEMBEREENB10RRE M B IREK KRB ESHERF285
REEERRIREEREZRE (BFTA) :
REFRABME NG ECHELHNEELHERTE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has
identified some aspects of the new standards which may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below. As
the Group has not completed its assessment, further impacts may
be identified in due course.
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1 January 2018
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1 January 2019
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= S 87 75 3R < MY 5T (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 %

The standard replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement.

The standard introduces a new approach to the classification of
financial assets which is based on cash flow characteristics and
the business model in which the asset is held. A debt instrument
that is held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows and that has contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding is measured at amortised cost. A debt instrument
that is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting the contractual cash flows and selling the
instruments and that has contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
All other debt instruments are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Equity instruments are generally measured at fair
value through profit or loss. However, an entity may make an
irrevocable election on an instrument-by-instrument basis to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

The requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities are carried forward largely unchanged from
HKAS 39 except that when the fair value option is applied
changes in fair value attributable to changes in own credit risk
are recognised in other comprehensive income unless this creates
an accounting mismatch.

HKFRS 9 introduces a new expected-loss impairment model to
replace the incurred-loss impairment model in HKAS 39. It is
no longer necessary for a credit event or impairment trigger
to have occurred before impairment losses are recognised. For
financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, an entity will generally recognise
12-month expected credit losses. If there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, an entity will
recognise lifetime expected credit losses. The standard includes a
simplified approach for loans receivable to always recognise the
lifetime expected credit losses.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

The de-recognition requirements in HKAS 39 are carried forward
largely unchanged.

The Group’s financial assets that are currently classified as
available-for-sale include the unlisted equity securities. The Group
expects to irrevocably designate these equity securities as fair
value through other comprehensive income. This will give rise to
a change in accounting policy. The unlisted equity securities are
currently measured at cost less impairment with any impairment
losses recognised in profit or loss. HKFRS 9 requires fair value
measurement with fair value changes recognised in other

comprehensive income without recycling.

The new expected credit loss impairment model in HKFRS 9
may result in the earlier recognition of impairment losses on the
Group'’s loans receivable and other financial assets. The Group is
unable to quantify the impact until a more detailed assessment
is completed.

HKFRS 15 replaces all existing revenue standards and
interpretations.

The core principle of the standard is that an entity recognises
revenue to depict the transfer of goods and services to customers
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to become entitled in exchange for those goods and
services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-ZT—"F+-_A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 28 M 2 (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 %

An entity recognises revenue in accordance with the core principle
by applying a 5-step model:

1. Identify the contract with a customer

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determine the transaction price

4. Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

5. Recognise revenue when or as the entity satisfies a

performance obligation

The standard also includes comprehensive disclosure requirements
relating to revenue.

The Group is currently assessing the impacts of adopting HKFRS
15 on the consolidated financial statements and is unable to
estimate the impact of the new standard on the consolidated
financial statements until a more detailed analysis is completed.

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases and related interpretations.
The new standard introduces a single accounting model for
lessees. For lessees the distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed and lessees will recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for all leases (with optional exemptions for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets). HKFRS 16
carries forward the accounting requirements for lessors in HKAS
17 substantially unchanged. Lessors will therefore continue to
classify leases as operating or financing leases.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

The Group's office property leases are currently classified as
operating leases and the lease payments (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Under HKFRS 16 the Group
may need to recognise and measure a liability at the present
value of the future minimum lease payments and recognise a
corresponding right-of-use asset for these leases. The interest
expense on the lease liability and depreciation on the right-of-
use asset will be recognised in profit or loss. The Group's assets
and liabilities will increase and the timing of expense recognition
will also be impacted as a result.

As disclosed in note 34, the Group's future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases for its office
properties amounted to HK$1,189,336 as at 31 December 2016.
The Group will need to perform a more detailed assessment in
order to determine the new assets and liabilities arising from
these operating leases commitments after taking into account
the transition reliefs available in HKFRS 16 and the effects of
discounting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= S 87 75 3R < MY 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE=—FT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise in the accounting
policies below (e.g. investment properties classified as held for sale that
are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an entity when the
Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties.
A potential voting right is considered only if the holder has the
practical ability to exercise that right.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in
a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share
of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
and any accumulated foreign currency translation reserve relating
to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 28 M 2 (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 %

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases), held for use in the
supply of services, or for administrative purposes, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost,
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over
the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal

annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold land under finance leases Over the lease terms
Buildings 10%
Leasehold improvements 50%
Furniture and fixture 50%
Office equipment 50%
Computer 50%
Motor vehicle 25%
Motor yacht 12.5%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment property is
measured initially at its cost including all direct costs attributable
to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at its
fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
the investment property are recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied or a property
held for sale, it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment
or inventories as appropriate, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at
the date of transfer is recognised as a revaluation of property,
plant and equipment.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as operating leases.

Where the Group is the lessee, lease payments (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Group is the lessor, rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.
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FE—EHEMEERRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= S 87 75 3R < MY 5T (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 %

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. At the commencement of the lease term,
a finance lease is capitalised at the lower of the fair value
of the leased asset and the present value of the minimum
lease payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
statement of financial position as finance lease payable.
Lease payments are apportioned between the finance
charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The
finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease
term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as
owned assets over the shorter of the lease term and their
estimated useful lives.

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lumpsum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment, unless it
is clear that both elements are operating leases, in which
case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= S 87 75 3R < MY 5T (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 %

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of a financial asset is under
a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial assets
within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and
are initially measured at fair value, plus directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
loans and receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. These assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method (except for short-
term receivables where interest is immaterial) minus any
reduction for impairment or uncollectibility. Typically loans
receivable, prepayments, deposits and other receivables
and bank and cash balances are classified in this category.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are not classified as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. They are included in
non-current assets unless the Groups intend to dispose
of the investment within 12 months from the end of the
reporting period.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, are measured at cost less impairment

losses.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Loans receivable are amounts due from customers for the
provision and arrangement of credit facilities to the customers in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of loans and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Loans and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less allowance for impairment.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value.

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable
and the asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale
in its present condition. The Group must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of the asset’s or disposal group’s
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= S 87 75 3R < MY 5T (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 %

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted
for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at
their fair values and are subsequently measured at the higher of:

— the amount of the obligations under the contracts, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and

— the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the guarantee contracts.

Other payables are stated initially at their fair values and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably.

Interest income on loans is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset. When a loan has been written down as a result
of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash receipts for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to
receive payment are established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 28 M 2 (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 %

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement scheme (“MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme.

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group to the
funds.

The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme, except
for the Group's employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of termination
benefits.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the
fair value (excluding the effect of non-market based vesting
conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair
value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-
based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the
vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will
eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market based
vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY T (continued @)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-ZT—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

VA B #5 SEI DA PR 10 2 EL T B9 53R T
RRETARKEBHRORTE(E
ﬁaﬁgﬁﬁm%ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁéou
i HEE A5 B LA B D A B A A SRR
ﬁﬁﬁ%?m%“iﬁﬁf$%l
MEFREBEBORNG - N 5B
VA B AR SHH - I 5t 3E T 5 B B R
HHFEEHRE -

B BRALEEREREE(H
R—BREERTEEBREREAE
FHEH)MEREE ZBERAR
RAEEEZHBORE  HEZXF
BERT LA EFHRAERE A&
FHERRL B EBEFIM
NAaMEBEEZREMMmMELZE
B &R E T RE 2 1 B WA Th e AT
REAZBEKRATAR °

—REBAESANER RS
ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ‘ﬂ%ﬁé$2%%&
ABEEBZIAEEZ X HERK
RZEREXMEE - EAMLEIIE
%Fﬁﬁﬁﬁ“Wﬁﬁ@ﬁWﬁ%

EER)ZEERAZ METHE - 1E
FRIAERGEREEMEL ZE
& QBRSO

FEEMEEXRADREEEZH
FRERAER -



FE—EHEMEERRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= S 87 75 3R < MY 5T (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 %

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model of the Group
whose business objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax for such investment properties are measured based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 3 & B4 ﬁ% E&%Bﬁ =t (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &=

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group.

An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any

of the following conditions applies:

(@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at
each reporting date for indications of impairment and where
an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
of disposal of the individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-generating unit

whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated first
against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases
in the recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the
impairment.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether
its financial assets are impaired, based on objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition, the estimated future cash flows of the (group of)
financial asset(s) have been affected.

Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-ZT—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

(vi) EBRBIAMBALE
2 X H RS o
(vii) B (A0 BT 8 Bl A = %

af
He

i
AHEBNREBZ
SZERZER
EHEAR -

i

el -
=]
i3

i
e

FERMEEMNFEEHENSHREHNR
BmAEERETR  HEEDRE
AEBEaEaRARNIHREH
fEEtAI B S5 - A B & B Io 5L
EREEETE WHEELEEL
ABDPBYREMEEREEMLSE
MBEERA AAKRESEREE
FEONRESELEMEE - ATkE
THERMENEEXRECELEENMD
EAEEEAATEREDEKNER
EheBEE -

ERBEALE,/REEEEME
HARRERENRE - RERR
MEHEBEEREE, RO EES
fir (B 51 2560 18) 49 5 %5 A B 49 32 31
FREH -

ReELBMNREBREEEAR
BEHBUEE RENRESELE
UEMEMEEZ HRLEPIAE - B8
REFEHEFNARESFER
SPABE  BEEBEURE -

RERSHR AEEHSRER
BB (A EENGTA
KESREARNTERERELED
—HEXZBREHMRZIZE)FEE
ERMEEEDRME



FE—EHEMEERRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= S 87 75 3R < MY 5T (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 %

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its
cost is considered also to be objective evidence of impairment.

In addition, for loans receivables that are assessed not to be
impaired individually, the Group assesses them collectively for
impairment, based on the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the delayed payments in the portfolio,
observable changes in economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables, etc.

Only for loans receivables, the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the

allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is directly
reduced by the impairment loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if the amount
of the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed (either directly or by adjusting the allowance
account for loans receivable) through profit or loss. However, the
reversal must not result in a carrying amount that exceeds what
the amortised cost of the financial asset would have been had
the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment
is reversed.

For available-for-sale equity securities, an increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation reserve;

impairment losses are not reversed through profit or loss.

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements when material.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

The Group makes impairment allowance for loans receivable based on
assessments of the recoverability of the loans receivable, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor.
If there is objective evidence that impairment loss on loans receivable
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The
identification of bad and doubtful debts requires significant judgement
on whether the objective evidence for impairment exists and assessing
the amount of impairment loss requires significant estimates when
determining the present value of the expected future cash flows. Where
the actual result is different from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of the loans receivable and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has been charged.

As at 31 December 2016, the impairment allowance for loans receivable
amounted to HK$10,492,669 (2015: HK$6,562,045).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 28 M 2 (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—_Z—A"F+_A=+—HILFE

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk,
liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the inability or unwillingness
of a counterparty to meet its contractual obligations. The carrying
amount of the bank and cash balances, loans and interests
receivable, deposits and other receivables, included in the
consolidated statement of financial position represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group's
financial assets, before taking into account of collateral it holds.
Exposure to such credit risk arises primarily from its financing

activities to customers.

The Group’s credit policy specifies the credit approval, review
and monitoring processes. All new customers of the Group are
subject to account opening procedures which include financial
background checks for credit verification purpose. Credit limit
applications are guided by a set of credit principles and these
applications are subject to regular independent review. The board
of directors of the Company are responsible to ensure the credit
policies and operation manual are appropriate to the market need
and the Group’s loans department ensures the credit approval,
review and monitoring processes as per stipulated in the manual
are properly followed by the operation staff.

The Group also adopts a “two eyes” process requiring credit
approval at successively higher levels or committees depending
on, among other things, the size and nature of the proposed
transactions.

AEERLEEIHGESESRER 215
EREE  RE M ER R EERE - KE

EEENRREESEITATRANER
MENSKEEREENEAAZEAEH
MBRB SRR o

Rk 2B F & NHIER
BREME - EREENER o 7
FAEMBMRARZIRITEREE
ﬁ‘% REEFREFE - R R HEMmE
WHRENEEHEASANEE R ALE
EREERENSEREERRCRE
BEFAENERR)  ZEEERR
TEREATPIRENRERT

AEENEERRECERAEER
% BHRREZERF AEBEME
MEFAETHETE BEET
BHESRE - AREEENER -
EERERFUN—ETENEER
AMERIES MRERERERKLER
BUEMN ARREESEERRE
ERRRBREFMETTEFTE
i 72 &= [ B 7R A FE AR T 0 AT AT BA
MiEE#HEZ FHREZEEFER
RIEABXE BT -

REBRBERAIERIEF  RIE

(KRR BETRSOHAE R
CERHERESRIBATRAE

iﬁ&i,\af’ﬁﬁﬁz T #HEE o



FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

The credit quality classification of gross loans receivable (before
impairment allowance) using the Group's credit rating system is
set out in the table below:

Performing B4
Doubtful Bk
Loss &

The Group considers all loans receivable (except for loans to
foreign domestic workers) as doubtful if the repayment of
principal and/or interest has been overdue for more than 3
months and principal, accrued interest and/or future interest may
not be fully secured by the fair value of collateral at its prevailing
market price. The Group considers the loans receivable as loss if
the repayments of principal and/or interest have been overdue for
more than 45 days for the loans to foreign domestic workers, or
have been overdue for more than 6 months for all other types
of loans receivable; and in both cases the collection of principal
and/or interest in full is improbable after taking into account the

fair values of the collateral at prevailing market prices.

Based on the above individual assessment, the loans department
of the Group proposes to the management of the Company
the amount of impairment provision to be made at least on a
monthly basis. The Group also performs collective assessment
of the loans receivable by grouping together all its receivables
with similar credit risk characteristics. The impairment provision
is made based on the historical impairment rates of receivables
with similar credit risk characteristic.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 S 84 7% ¥R 2 MY 2T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E=_T—<"E+=-A=+—HIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd) 6. TREAMEEE)
(A) CREDIT RISK (Contd) A EFERRE)

Movements in the provision for impairment on loans receivable
are as follows:

At 1 January 2015 R-ZZE—RHF—H—H 2,128,950 1,925,063
Charged during the year FANFHR 7,999,549 600,000
Written off during the year EAE & (5,723,491) —
Reversed during the year &N B Bl (368,026) —
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R_ZT— R4
+TZA=+—BkK
—T-—XRF—-HA—H 4,036,982 2,525,063
Charged during the year FAFHR 7,426,425 2,964,321
Written off during the year T A 18 (5.783,402) —
Reversed during the year & A B [E (676,720) —
At 31 December 2016 RZT—RF
ZH=EF= 5,003,285 5,489,384

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has certain concentrations
of credit risk as 6% (2015: 6%) of the Group's loans receivable
were due from the Group’s largest customer, and 25% (2015:
25%) were due from the five largest customers determined on
the same basis.

Collateral is obtained in respect of mortgage loans and secured
fixed loans which made up to 28% (2015: 22%) of the total loans
receivable as at 31 December 2016. Such collaterals comprise
residential and commercial properties pledged against the
balances. As at 31 December 2016, the fair value of collaterals
for the first mortgage loans which are mainly residential flats
based on its prevailing market prices amounted to approximately
HK$201.71 million (2015: HK$67.83 million). The fair value of
properties collateralised for the second mortgage loans before
discounting credit protections available to the first mortgagees
amounted to approximately HK$122.58 million (2015: HK$254.72
million).
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its
payment obligations when they are due. The Group manages its
liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability
of funding from shareholders of the Company and adequate
committed lines of funding from financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements. The board of directors of the Company
is responsible to ensure the Group to maintain sufficient capital
funding and credit lines to meet liquidity requirements. This is
achieved by projecting cash flows on a regular basis. The accounts
department of the Group monitors and reports the funding needs
to management.

The Group is not exposed to significant liquidity risk since there
is no substantial irrevocable commitment associated with financial
instruments.

The following table summarises the maturity of the Group's
non-derivative financial liabilities as at 31 December 2016 based
on contractual undiscounted payments. Except for the interest-
bearing loans and the loan notes, the contractual undiscounted
payments of all financial liabilities approximate to their carrying
amounts as at the end of the reporting period.
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Eﬂﬁ ﬁ% i&?ﬁ MUL g?ﬁ (continued #&)
E_T—RNEFF+-_A=+—BHLFE

At 31 December 2016 R-ZF—RE
+=HA=+-H
Accruals and other payables FEEtE R REMER
IE
Interest-bearing loans (note (a)) &8 & 3 (M 7% (a)
Loan notes (note (b)) B REE& (3% (b)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—A%F
+=A=+—H
Accruals and other payables e B A R E e A
FIB — 1,319,740 — 72,000 1,391,740
Interest-bearing loans (note (a)) st 8 B (K (@) 9,553,598 — — — 9,553,598
9,553,598 1,319,740 — 72,000 10,945,338
Note: Bt 2
(a) Included in interest-bearing loans are mortgage loan from bank (a) STEERBERITHERBER B

totalling HK$8,537,056 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: mortgage
loan and corporate tax loans from banks totalling HK$9,553,598).
The loan agreements of these loans contain a repayment on
demand clause giving the banks the unconditional right to call in
the loans at any time. Therefore, for the purpose of the above
maturity profile, such amounts are classified as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause of the bank loans, the board
of directors of the Company is confident that the banks will not
demand full repayment of the mortgage loan within 12 months
and they consider that the mortgage loan will be repaid in
accordance with its respective repayment schedules as set out in
the loan agreement. The evaluation was made after considering
the financial position of the Group at the end of the reporting
period; the values of the collaterals securing the mortgage loan;
the lack of events of default, and the fact that the Group has made
all previously scheduled repayments on time. In accordance with
the contractual terms, repayments of the mortgage loan are to be
made by the Group on an accelerating basis until the contractual
maturities in 2027.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Note: (Conta)
(a) (Contad)

The remaining balance of HK$50,000,000 that is classified as “on
demand” represents the independent third party loan as at 31
December 2016, which are repayable on demand. No such loan
facility was utilised by the Group as at 31 December 2015.

The board of directors of the Company has closely monitored the
rate of utilisation of these facilities throughout the year and make
sure all relevant interests were duly paid.

(b) The loan notes are classified as “on demand” as the holders of
the loan notes has the right to request the Company to redeem
all/part of the outstanding principal amount of the loan notes on
a day after the third month of the date of issue of the loan notes
and before the maturity date.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument
or the interest income of a portfolio will fluctuate due to changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s major interest-bearing assets
at the end of the reporting period are bank deposits and interest-
bearing loans receivable and payable. Interests on bank deposits
are principally based on deposits rates offered by banks in Hong
Kong. Interest-bearing loans receivable are charged at fixed or
floating rates. Interest-bearing loans payable comprise loans from
independent lenders which are charged at fixed rates, and loans
from a bank which are charged at floating rates.

The Group manages its interest rate exposure by matching the
interest rate profile of its assets and liabilities. The board of
directors of the Company is responsible for ensuring the policy is
appropriate and sufficient to monitor the interest rate exposure
of the Group, by regularly monitoring the benchmark interest
rates of products offered against prevailing market conditions.
Substantially most of the Group’s loans receivable carried fixed
interest rates. The Group prices these loans receivable strategically
to reflect market fluctuations and achieve a reasonable interest
rate spread.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—T—A"F+_A=+—HILFE

In consideration of historical fluctuation in interest rates in recent

years, the Group expects a similar level of change within the next

twelve months. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity

of a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other

variables held constant arising from the Group's interest-bearing

financial instruments.

The sensitivity analysis below is presented for the Group’s bank

deposits and loans receivable and payable at floating interest

rates.
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31 December 2016 —E-RE
+=-A=+—H
Bank deposits |ITFE R
Interest-bearing loans receivable BB R
Interest-bearing loans payable BT EER
31 December 2015 —E—AF
+=A=+—8
Bank deposits RITFE R +/-50 +/-141,669 +/-141,669
Interest-bearing loans receivable JE W ET BB K +/-50 +/-183,253 +/-183,253
Interest-bearing loans payable R Ft RER +/-50 -/+38,303 -/+38,303
2015
—T—RF
HK$
7T
Financial assets: SREE:
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEHESRMEE —
Loans and receivables (including cash Bk EWRRIE(BE
and cash equivalents) RekReZFEW) 407,084,571
Financial liabilities: SRIEfE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHK ARG EZ
LREE 10,945,338
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate their respective fair values.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The following disclosures of fair value
measurements use a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access
at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of any
of the three levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances

that caused the transfer.

At 31 December 2016, the fair value measurements of the Group's
investment properties classified as held for sale are non-recurring and
are determined using level 2 inputs.

At 31 December 2015, the fair value measurements of the Group's
investment properties are recurring and are determined using level 2

inputs.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—_Z—A"F+_A=+—HILFE

At 31 December 2016, the valuation technique and key inputs used
in the level 2 fair value measurements of the investment properties
classified as held for sale are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2015, the valuation technique and key inputs used in
the level 2 fair value measurements of the investment properties are
set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

During the two years, there were no changes in the valuation techniques
used.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, all of the Group’s revenue
has been generated from the provision and arrangement of credit
facilities in Hong Kong. Revenue represents interest income earned from
loans offered to the Group’s customers. Information reported to the
Group'’s chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resources
allocation and assessment of the Group’s performance, is focused on the
operating results of the Group as a whole as the Group’s resources are
integrated and no discrete financial information is available. Accordingly,
no segment analysis or information about the Group’s products and
services is presented.

All of the Group’s revenue from external customers and assets was
generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no revenue from
a single external customer amounted to 10% or more of the Group's
revenue.

The Group's revenue represents interest income charged on credit
facilities provided to borrowers.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3 & 874 %5 8 2 MY &% (continuea i)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ_T— R XE+T-_A=1+—HILFE

10. OTHER INCOME 10. HfUg A
2015
—E—RF
HK$
Vo
Other fee income H&AKA 518 364,151
Bank interest income RITF B A 16,314 312
Gross rental income HE WA 85 1,452,735 1,526,777
Management fee income EEERARA 20,000 —
1,489,567 1,891,240
11. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 11. HttlhE R E B
2015
—T—ARF
HK$
7 T
Fair value (losses)/gains on investment properties REMENFE(EE)
W &= (1,900,000) 3,000,000
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HE¥E « BE K&
%8 I 1,089 248,284
(1,898,911) 3,248,284
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. % EH
2015
—ET-RF
HK$
& T
Finance lease charges BREREER — 22,985
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts (note) RITERRBELZFE
(PR 3E) 377,516 1,463,830
Interest on other borrowings ARAFABRERENH
wholly repayable within five years H g E R L 13,699 2,046,911
Effective interest expense on loan notes wholly ARAFABRERENH
repayable within five years EXERNEREF X
i3 750,678 —
1,141,893 3,533,726
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 28 M 2 (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &}

Note:

The Group's loan, which was borrowed from the bank as at 31 December

2016, was classified in the consolidated statement of financial position as

current liabilities, as the respective loan agreement contain a clause that

gives the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any time. This is

irrespective of whether a default event has occurred and notwithstanding

any other terms and maturities stated in the loan agreement.

Based on the maturity terms of the loan borrowed from bank as at

year end date, the amounts of interest expense on the loan not wholly

repayable within five years totaled HK$376,630 for the year ended 31

December 2016 (2015: HK$402,132).

The Group's profit before tax is stated after charging/(crediting) the

following:

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation

Amortisation of leasehold land under finance
leases

Legal and professional fees

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Fair value losses/(gains) on investment properties

Direct operating expenses of investment properties
that generate rental income

Minimum lease rental payments in respect of land
and buildings under an operating lease

Net charge for impairment allowance for loans
receivable
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EE—RNE+-A=+—BHItEE

BTE
RN B B 6 2R R A R A6 AR R (T 2
HEMRBEE N TRERBEREN
EfTE MR R B ) REER=
E-RETZA=+-BRBITBEANE
TRGEARVBRRRAIARE EE -

BERFEHEANRITEROINEER &
BERAFABHEMNNERF S
REE-Z—ARF+-A=1+—HLFE
& #+75376,630/8 T (ZZE—HF : 402,132
PETT) ©

AEEBBRATEMEMEGEA) T &

18 :

HK$
BT

650,000
667,596

64,899
2,302,922

(248,284)
(286,818)

(3,000,000)

220,943

1,216,075

8,231,523




FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 38 2% MY 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ_T— R XE+T-_A=1+—HILFE

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 14. FIEHBAX

2015
—T—RF
HK$
o

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BB I — BAR NS
Provision for the year FRNEE 7,492,677 4,811,689
Over-provision in prior years BTFEREEE (20,000) (54,366)
7,472,677 4,757,323
Deferred tax (note 28) i 3E B4 38 (B 5£28) (345,025) (131,111)
7,127,652 4,626,212

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% (2015:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31

December 2016.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the product

of profit before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is as

follows:

BE-Z-AET-A=t+—ALEE &
AFIBHE R IR {6 3 RBEAA © $216.5%
“FHE  16.5%) A B R A -

FiT 15 75t 7 52 82 B A58 A1 i 1) R DA & 78 1S X
BEZIBERANT :

2015
—E—A0fF
HK$
BT
Profit before tax % 35 A1 Al 40,774,144 29,498,918
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 16.5% 12 58 B %1 #£16.5%
(2015: 16.5%) (ZZ2—HF :16.5%)
AAEE R IE 6,727,734 4,867,321
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BARBIM AN B E (174,590) (497,284)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible TR HBRAZ T B2 631,918 310,193
Tax effect of temporary difference not recognised K & R E b =28 1Y
miGzE — 348
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not previously i RFER M BB EEH
recognised BiweE (37.410) —
Over-provision in prior years BEFEHBERE (20,000) (54,366)
Income tax expense Fr S 7 7,127,652 4,626,212
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 S 84 7% ¥R 2 MY 2T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E=_T—<"E+=-A=+—HIEFE

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 15. EERABX
2015
—T—RF
HK$
78 7T
Employee benefits expense (excluding directors’ BRERARA(TRIEE
emoluments): =EMe)
Salaries, bonuses and allowances %trﬁ - TBAT KO BA 9,643,098 8,859,965
Pension scheme contributions RINE FT 8 528,483 539,585
10,171,581 9,399,550
(A)  PENSION SCHEME CONTRIBUTIONS (A)  RIKEFH SR
Forfeited contributions totalling HK$41,743 (2015: HK$59,250) Efﬁ”&fﬁfﬂﬁ@gﬁ‘“JB%T_ﬂ(:g_ﬂ
were utilised during the year. No balance (2015: Nil) was available G :59,2508 ) ERNFANBA - B
at the year-end date to reduce future contributions. B BELEHK(CE—RFH)
AP S R R K o
(B)  The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the B) FRN AEEREBEEFIEERED
year included four (2015: four) directors whose emoluments H(CE-—RE EHR)ES HME
are reflected in the analysis presented in note 16(A) to the RERE B BRI F16(ADITHE
consolidated financial statements. The emolument of the 5l T —R(ZE—HF: —R)E
remaining one (2015: one) individual is set out below: SZMEeFEEINMT
2015
—T—RF
HK$
o
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e REREMRER 1,196,107 420,000
Performance related bonus FKIBHEAIEA — 61,000
Pension scheme contributions RINE 5T SR 18,000 42,000
1,214,107 523,000
The emolument fell within the following band: B FToIEENABRET :
Number of individuals
EEAH
2015
—E—A0fF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,0007% 7T — 1
HK$1,000,000 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/ 7T &
1,500,000/ 7T 1 —
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otes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 & 87 75 3 28 MY 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE=ZT—"F+=-A=1+—HIFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EEEAIRF &

(A) DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS A E==PS
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 EEEHE-_T—XRFT+ZA=1+—
December 2016 is set out below: HIEFEMMSHIMT

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

RETALTUEES R (FRAFATAFAMBATARARBEAIBANNE

Allowance
and benefits Performance Pension

in kind related scheme Share-based

Salaries (Note) bonuses contribution payments

BER
BUEH REHEM BHASE 8400
(B &E) fe4l R BROMR

Executive directors: BITEE:
Sin Kwok Lam 5Bl — 1,200,000 — — 150,000 — 1,350,000
Tsang Yan Kwong ZH — 1,072,500 31,573 100,100 134,063 - 1,338,236
Leung Wai Hung REMH - 643,500 20,468 65,000 64,350 - 793,318
Ho Siu Man Al 7k 8 — 572,000 28,258 60,000 57,200 — 717,458
Non-executive director: FRTES:
Chan Lai Yee RER
(note (a) (P 3£ (a)) 59,333 — - - — — 59,333
Independent non-executive ~ MBI EHTES:
directors:
Yu Wan Hei REE 120,000 — — — — — 120,000
Fung Kam Man 5 7 X
(note (b)) (Bt 7% (b)) 54,516 — — — — — 54,516
Wang Zhiwei S
(note () (Bt 7 () 22,581 — — — — — 22,581
Lee Kin Fai FEE
(note (d)) (Pt 7 (d)) 65,806 — — — — — 65,806
Tai Man Hin, Tony B E
(note () (it 7% (@) 97,742 — — — — — 97,742
Total for 2016 —E-ANEEHR 419,978 3,488,000 80,299 225,100 405,613 — 4,618,990
Note: The allowance and benefits in kind refers to untaken leave s : EREREWEF I ESEZ R
provision for director(s). R B 4 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 38 78 MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E=_T—<"E+=-A=+—HIEFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EERE/A KA =& (&

(Contad)
(A) DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (Contd) A ZEE=2(
The remuneration of every director for the year ended 31 EEEHE_T—AFTA=1+—
December 2015 is set out below: EIJtiEZEI'\JM/ﬂ%%ZW T
Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a director, whether of
the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
HREMALTABEZSH (TR ARRRAKEMBRR)MRERBENSHENHMES
Allowance  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme  Share-based
Fees Salaries in kind bonuses  contribution payments Total
AL R RIEH RASEE LABR R &
e e &R TEAL R EREMR B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT T BT
Executive directors: HITES:
Sin Kwok Lam % B — 2,860,000 = = 357,500 — 3,217,500
Tsang Yan Kwong w5 = 975,000 = 37,500 121,875 — 1,134,375
Leung Wai Hung REMH = 585,000 = 22,500 58,500 — 666,000
Ho Siu Man A % 8 — 520,000 — 20,000 52,000 — 592,000
Non-executive director: FRITER:
Chan Lai Yee RER
(note (a)) (Bft &£ (a)) 90,833 — — — — — 90,833
Independent non-executive BUFNTES:
directors:
Yu Wan Hei REE 90,833 — — — — — 90,833
Lee Kin Fai FeE
(note (d)) (Bff #E(d)) 90,833 - — — — — 90,833
Tai Man Hin, Tony & Ef
(note (e)) (I & (e)) 90,833 — — — — — 90,833
Total for 2015 —T-hFHE 363,332 4,940,000 — 80,000 589,875 — 5,973,207
Note: (a) Retired on 28 June 2016 M&E: (a) R=ZT—XEXA=+/\AH
RE
(b) Appointed on 18 July 2016 (b) RZT—A"FtA+/\RE
=
(c) Appointed on 24 October 2016 © RZZT—R"FE+A=-+HA
BERE
(d) Resigned on 18 July 2016 (d) RZT—A"FtA+/\B#E
£
(e) Resigned on 24 October 2016 (e) RZZT—R"FE+A=-+HA
BE{E
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FRAWEESEWE ﬁ ﬁ BERELEM
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2015: Nil). MENZH (=T — D ) o
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CEG LIMITED

“Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 87 5% 3R 38 MY & (continued )
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—T—"E+-_A=1+—HBIFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 16. EET/RARFZE(Z)

(Contd)

(B)  INFORMATION ABOUT LOANS, QUASI-LOANS AND OTHER B AREANUNEZE IEHDEAERK
DEALINGS IN FAVOUR OF DIRECTORS, CONTROLLED HBMERBRIm ANEXR  EH
BODIES CORPORATE AND CONNECTED ENTITIES R H A3 5 E K
The information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings BRAARRARIHAREM B AR A%
entered into by the Company or subsidiary undertaking of the MEE—BZEHEAERBAZ =
Company in favour of a controlled body corporate of Mr. Sin AFIMHER EERREMRS
Kwok Lam is as follows: ZEBEYMT

Outstanding Maximum
amount Outstanding outstanding
Total at the amount at amount
Name of the amount beginning of the end of during the Interest
controlled body corporate [EVEL the year the year year rate  Security
FOREE FRAHEE FARE
ZERHEABBER FE ff 8 &8 &8 KHEELE e HER
As at 31 December 2016 RZB-7&
+=B=+-H
National Arts Entertainment EZRLHERAT
Limited
Loan A BHA — 6,400,000 — 6,400,000 N/a N/a N/a
~ER AER TER
Loan B SE:] — 6,000,000 — 6,000,000 N/a N/a N/a
TER TER TER
As at 31 December 2015 RZZ—HF
+=A=+-H
National Arts Entertainment HERLEARATA
Limited
Loan A EHA 6,400,000 6,400,000 6,400,000 6,400,000  Matured on 1%  Nil
8 April 2016 i3
R-TE—XREF
mANR
E=lp:
Loan B BB 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000  Matured on 1%  Nil
8 April 2016 i3
R-ZB—RF
mANAR
ZI| 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= S 87 75 3R < MY 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE=—FT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during

F 48 S A 0] B 40 A 77 4B DA 2R
REAERITN T BEEREEEBEH
MEARS ZHRANTHEEE
ERREENEANNE -

the year.
2015
—F—Af
HK$
78 7T
2016 proposed final dividend of HK0.2 cents —E-RFEBAAKE
(2015: Nil) per ordinary share IR I 3 A% 0.2 1l

(ZZE—AHF &)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2016 of HK0.2 cents per ordinary share
has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the
shareholders at the forthcoming general meeting.

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$33,646,492
(2015: HK$24,872,706), and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 2,831,968,021 (2015: 302,374,157 (restated)) in issue during
the year.

No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Company did not
have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during the two years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015.

RBEHRR  EFCEIRBE_T—
RNETZTA=+—HIFFESREERO.2
BRI R B - AR RIRR B A 5 A A
RAGLIERTEE -

BREANBANDEREQGER A BN
& N4 F)33,646,492%8 T(Z T — A F:
24,872,7067 7T) & F N B B 17 E B R
15 B% £2,831,968,021/% (= & — R 4F -
302,374,157 (L& E5)) 5T & ©

MRARARBE-B—<FR-B—HF
+= A=+ — B 1L B 4 3 A
BEERR - LR 2T SRE AT -



“EIR_ST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

et
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 & 87 75 3 78 MY 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—T—"E+-_A=1+—HBIFE

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 19. X - BERRE

Leasehold  Furniture Office Motor Motor
Buildings improvements and fixture equipment Computer vehicle yacht Total

HEY%E RER

%t EERE BOZHRMHE Th

Cost 5%
At 1 January 2015 RZZ—1F
—A—H 2,348,667 2,024,372 636,092 1,037,490 1,026,004 638,000 2,500,000 10,210,625
Additions NE — — 5,830 30,303 54,663 — — 90,796
Transfer to investment BRERENE
properties (716,331) — — — — — — (716,331)
Disposals & — (517,930) (193,258) (205,371) (124,314) (638,000) (2,500,000) (4,178,873)

At 31 December 2015 and RZZ—A1F

1 January 2016 +=ZA=+—-8
R=F—~%F
—A—AH 1,632,336 1,506,442 448,664 862,422 956,353 — — 5,406,217
Additions RE — 1,515,460 331,903 472,259 456,474 — — 2,776,096
Transfer from investment BRERENE
properties 655,000 - — — — - — 655,000
Disposals HE - (497,892) (69,953)  (180,179)  (72,239) — —  (820,263)
Transfer to assets classified as ~ EEEHHE AR E
held for sale (note 25) HEEE
(Ff % 25) (2,099,775) (540,080) (77,000) — — - —  (2,716,855)
At 31 December 2016 RZB—RF
+-A=+—-H 187,561 1,983,930 633,614 1,154,502 1,340,588 — — 5,300,195
Accumulated depreciation B3t &
At 1 January 2015 R-ZB—01%F
—A—A 1,066,667 2,024,372 624,610 1,005,804 918,139 425,333 781,250 6,846,175
Charge for the year FRYH 199,051 — 8,230 38,330 93,484 146,209 182,292 667,596
Transfer to investment BRERENE
properties (226,447) — — — — — — (226,447)
Disposals HE — (517,930) (193,258) (205,371) (124,314) (571,542) (963,542)  (2,575,957)

At 31 December 2015 and RZE—HEF

1 January 2016 +=A=+-AH
k=F—~%¥
—A—H 1,039,271 1,506,442 439,582 838,763 887,309 — — 4,711,367
Charge for the year FAXH 205,777 482,650 112,795 168,372 173,959 — — 1,143,553
Disposals ik — (497,892) (69,953)  (179,468)  (72,239) — —  (819,552)
Transfer to assets classified as ~ BEZE DB AEE
held for sale (note 25) HEEE
(B &£25) (1,120,386) (157,524) (22,458) — — - —  (1,300,368)
At 31 December 2016 RZB—XEF
+-A=1+—H 124,662 1,333,676 459,966 827,667 989,029 = — 3,735,000
Carrying amount MR &
At 31 December 2016 RZB—RF
+-A=1+—H 62,899 650,254 173,648 326,835 351,559 — — 1,565,195
At 31 December 2015 RZZ—-HF
+=-A=+—-A 593,065 = 9,082 23,659 69,044 = = 694,850
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FE—EHEMEERRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= S 87 75 3R < MY 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE=—FT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

During the year, one of the investment properties became an owner-
occupied building because its use had changed. The difference between
the fair values and the carrying amount of the building at the date of
transfer amounted to HK$300,000 was recognised as fair value gains

on investment properties.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, one of the owner-occupied
buildings became an investment property because its use had changed.
The difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of
the building at the date of transfer amounted to HK$5,203,775 was
recognised as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment.

At 1 January R—A—H

Transfer (to)/from property, plant and equipment & (ZE) BY% B&E
and leasehold land under finance leases HERBERNT

fAE i

Fair value (losses)/gains ANEE(EBE) WE

Transfer to assets classified as held for sale EREESBRIFELE
(note 25) & (F45£25)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—H

At 31 December 2015, the Group's investment properties are situated
in Hong Kong and are all held under long term leases. The investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2015 by RHL Appraisal
Limited, an independent professional qualified valuer, on direct
comparison of price of properties of similar size, character and location
(level 2 measurement). The key input used in the valuation was the price
per square feet. The investment properties were leased to independent

third parties under operating leases.

At 31 December 2015, the fair value of investment properties pledged
as security for the Group’s bank loans amounted to HK$35,900,000.

FA AP —EREWERE BEE LM
KAEBEET - ZBFTREZFAHANAT
1B B2 R TH & fa] &= §300,0008 7T E #E R A&
REMERFERE -

HE_T—AF+_A=+—HItFE  H
m-EBEERTEEMAEERMKRIRE
M- ZBFREFAHANERERA T
B Z 585,203,775 8 TEER AW E - B
ER&REEMR -

2015
—T—hF
HK$
7 7T

45,400,000

15,500,000
3,000,000

63,900,000

R=ZT—RAF+=A=+—8 XEEMHIK
BEMHEMNES HRBERAENES -
RZZE—RF+-A=+—0H ZZKEY
EEBELEXS B BER KT 17T E R
MERARIEZ LB RE  HE R
B zBREHHEEHK -FE) A
BEFERAZEFEHGHAEBRETHRER
REREMERBRKEHNHAETELE
=77 ©

RZZE-—REF+-A=+—H8 {EREE
BRTEXREAFNEENDENRFER
35,900,0007& 7T



FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 38 2% MY 5T (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ_T— R XE+T-_A=1+—HILFE

21. LEASEHOLD LAND UNDER FINANCE LEASES

21, MEMEAOTHEHEL

2015
—E—hF
HK$
BT
At 1 January R—H—H 15,425,168 25,296,408
Transfer from/(to) investment properties wEE S (R)REME 13,645,000 (9,806,341)
Amortisation during the year EAE: Fic (70,876) (64,899)

Transfer to assets classified as held for sale HBRESBEARELE
(note 25) & & (Kt 5£25) (27,670,598) —
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,328,694 15,425,168

The Group's leasehold land is analysed as follows: AEERNBEE L HOTHT:
2015
—T—RF
HK$
BT
In Hong Kong REE
Long leases KHEIFA A — 14,052,940
Medium-term leases HRERAE %Y 1,328,694 1,372,228
1,328,694 15,425,168
22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22. it ETRMEE

2015
—T—RF
HK$
BT

Unlisted equity securities, at cost less

impairment loss

2 B 7S ROR (B B 18 51 BR
OE NN

900,000 —

The unlisted equity investments are carried at cost less impairment loss

because the directors are of the opinion that the range of reasonable

fair value estimates is so significant that their fair values cannot be

measured reliably. Such investments mainly represent investments in the

shares of entities principally involved in dealing in securities. The Group

does not intend to dispose of the investments classified as non-current

assets in the near future.

The available-for-sale financial assets were denominated in Hong Kong

dollars.
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FE—EHEMEERRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= S 87 75 3R < MY 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE=—FT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2016

are as follows:

Name

et

First Holdings Consortium Limited

First Holdings Consortium Limited

First Credit (China) Limited
E—FRBK(FE)ERAA

Capital First Holdings Limited
AAE—ERERAT

Gorgeous Rise Limited

Gorgeous Rise Limited

First Credit Limited

E—ERAMBAERAR

Honour Event Limited

Honour Event Limited
Techlink Investments Limited
(“Techlink”)

BHREEERAR (@)

First Credit Holdings Limited
F—ERERBRAA

First Credit (HK) Limited
E—ERUBEB)ERAA

Note:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation (Note)
= AR ST 5 R
A 2 (B )

British Virgin Islands
RBRERHEE

Hong Kong
i

British Virgin Islands
RERLEE

British Virgin Islands
RERLHS

Hong Kong

)

British Virgin Islands
KBRZHS

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
HB

Hong Kong
i

Issued/registered
share capital
BT/
iR g S

HK$150,000,000
150,000,000/ 7T

HK$1
17 7T

US$1
(E

Us$100
1003 JT

HK$153,550,000

153,550,000 7T

Us$1
1%

HK$1

18T

HK$1
1787

HK$10,000
10,000% JT

All the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies.

RZB-—ARFTZA=+—8  KREHE

4

RAEIMEFEBRT :

Percentage of ownership
attributable to the Company

AATEEEAET DL

Direct Indirect
=k & 5
100 —
100 —
100 —
100 —
100 —
100 —
100 —
100 —
— 100
— 100
— 100
— 100
— 100
— 100
— 100
— 100
— 100
— 100

Principal activities

EREH

Investment holding

BE R

Dormant

By

Investment holding

RAEER

Dormant

£

Provision and
arrangement of

credit facilities

RERZHEERE

Dormant

(B

Investment holding

RAERR

Investment holding

RAEER

Dormant

=%

M LAmEMNBRAREREREMELQR -



FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 38 2% MY 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ_T— R XE+T-_A=1+—HILFE

24. LOANS RECEIVABLE 24, EWE R
2015
—ET—RF
HK$
Vo
Loans to customers BEEEX 883,564,878 378,923,601
Accrued interest receivables JE W2 FE BT B 8,920,396 5,883,198
892,485,274 384,806,799
Impairment allowance on individual assessment 8 37 T 1 A R B R (5.003,285) (4,036,982)
Impairment allowance on collective assessment SR HAIRERE (5.489,384) (2,525,063)
881,992,605 378,244,754
Analysed as: 5 5
Non-current assets SEMENE B 439,202,306 224,107,674
Current assets mE) & E 442,790,299 154,137,080
881,992,605 378,244,754
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans AR E —F ERAR P R U B B FE WS K
receivable to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed BREEERBRERE - EEETEHR
reqgularly by management. B -
The loans receivable above were denominated in Hong Kong dollars. FERERABITEE
The credit quality analysis of the loans receivable is as follows: BRERNEEEESNOAT :
2015
—ET—RF
HK$
7T
Neither past due nor impaired < 380 HA kR E
— Unsecured — M 636,003,288 290,016,752
— Secured — HHEA 228,478,133 62,071,009
Less than 1 month past due wmHETRE— @A 3,905,863 8,624,643
1 to 3 months past due mE—==1EAH 185,396 236,545
Over 3 months past due wEAE A =E A 946,937 19,817,179
869,519,617 380,766,128
Impaired (note) VRN D) 22,965,657 4,040,671
892,485,274 384,806,799
Note: Represents the gross amount of individually impaired loans receivable for Ma: EREEBERREBBELL HE
which impairment loss has been provided partially or in full as at year end BRENENREREKERERE -
date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= S 87 75 3R < MY 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE=—FT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of individual customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors were of the opinion that no
provision for impairment on these individual loans was necessary as
these loans receivable were substantially/fully settled subsequent to the
reporting period or there had not been a significant change in credit
quality that these balances were still considered fully recoverable.

Amongst all past due but not impaired loans, the second mortgage
loan of HK$1,262,288 (2015: first mortgage loan of HK$19,989,530 and
second mortgage loan of HK$300,000) were secured by the collaterals
with fair value (based on its prevailing market price) amounted to
HK$12,000,000 (2015: first mortgage loan of HK$23,750,000 and
second mortgage loan of HK$3,500,000) as at 31 December 2016.

The individually impaired loans receivable relate to clients that were in
financial difficulties and only a portion of the receivable was expected
to be recovered. As at 31 December 2016, the impaired loan of
HK$17,440,510 (2015: Nil) was secured by collateral with fair value
(based on its prevailing market price) amounted to HK$16,700,000. The
Group did not hold any collateral in respect of the remaining individually
impaired loans receivable.

3 #5360 5 7 S ORL (A0 R R SR A R 20T )
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY T (continued @)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE-T—AF+_A=+—HIEFE

On 29 November 2016, the Group entered into a provisional sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party (“Purchaser”),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell its entire equity interests in
Techlink (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as at 31
December 2016) and all the debts owing by Techlink to the Group as
at completion to the Purchaser at an aggregate cash consideration of
HK$91,000,000 subject to adjustments at completion. Techlink operates
certain investment properties for rental income purpose.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Techlink at the end of the

R-E—RE+—A-1TNB  NEEEB
VE=F(BAEDIY—HREE=HE
Bt AEEREMEH L EHE R @R
RAIRZZE—A"F+A=+—B2zHE#%
2EMBRAR 22 HBRERBETRRZS
RAaRERAEEZMAERY  #EHER
891,000,000 T (AIRTEXRZ SR FHE) -
HMipEEE TREDEERDBASBA -

HEHBRBERRCEERBBEIERAIMN

reporting period are as follows: T

Property, plant and equipment (note 19) M BB KRR (i E19)

Investment properties (note 20) % & ¥ % (M 75 20)

Leasehold land under finance leases (note 21) BER AT HE I (Ff E21)
Other receivables H th fE e SR8

Assets classified as held for sale DEARELEEE

Deferred tax liabilities (note 28) iR 3E B 18 A & (M 5£28)

Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale EDEAFIEHELEE HE
e OB N

DERFEHEEEFE

Net assets classified as held for sale

BRI BERAKEHEEER
Hih2HEKRAR R

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity relating to assets classified

as held for sale "R 25
The investment properties classified as held for sale were revalued on 31 DERFIEFLHEZREMERZT—RF

December 2016 by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent professional
qualified valuer, on direct comparison of price of properties of similar
size, character and location (level 2 measurement). The key input used
in the valuation was the price per square feet.

At 31 December 2016, the investment properties classified as held for
sale with a fair value of HK$34,000,000 was pledged as security for
the Group’s bank loan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 38 78 MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—T—AF+_A=+—HILFE

26. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS 26. sTEE R
2015
—T—RF
HK$
78 7T
Bank loans RITEK 8,537,056 9,553,598
Loan from independent third party BYE=HER 50,000,000 —
58,537,056 9,553,598
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BENEEESBENOT
2015
—ZE—hF
HK$
o
On demand or within one year BERS—FN 50,665,908 1,016,542
In the second year £ F 694,767 665,908
In the third to fifth year E=FEFRF 2,269,441 2,175,174
After five years hF & 4,906,940 5,695,974
58,537,056 9,553,598
Portion of bank loans that are due for repayment —FZHHEEESS
after one year but contain a repayment on REREERBERGIA
demand clause (shown under current liabilities) MEBEE)MRITER
D (7,871,148) (8,537,056)
Amount due for settlement within 12 months A A AR E 2 51
(shown under current liabilities) (B A7 8 B &) 50,665,908 1,016,542
The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denominated in AEBEENREENABTE -
Hong Kong dollars.
At 31 December 2016, the bank loan of HK$8,537,056 is secured by RZZT—A"F+=-A=+—H " 8,537,056
charge over the Group's investment properties classified as held for sale BLTHRTERUAAEBS>BERFELE
(note 25). B % & W 2 (M 7525) fE B IR -
At 31 December 2015, the bank loan of HK$9,174,259 is secured by RZZE—RF+-A=+—8 ' 9,174,259%
charge over the Group's investment properties (note 20). TCHIER 1T B FUA R & B 1% & W) 5 (i 5£20)
ERIE R
At 31 December 2016, the Group had no available undrawn borrowing RZE—ARF+ZA=+—H KAEEL
facilities (2015: Nil). EAHEHARRIEBEERE(CT—AF:

) o
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

The average interest rates at the end of the reporting period were as

follows:
Bank loans RITER
Loan from independent third party BYLE=FER
On demand REREE

Pursuant to the placing agreements (“Placing Agreements”) entered
into between the Company and two placing agents, namely Convoy
Asset Management Limited (“Convoy”) and Jun Yang Securities
Company Limited (“Jun Yang") (collectively as the “Placing Agents"”)
on 11 May 2016 and 27 June 2016 respectively, each of the Placing
Agents agreed to act on behalf of the Company to procure placees,
who are independent third parties, to subscribe for the 4.5% per annum
(payable quarterly in arrears) loan notes (“Loan Notes”) of the Company
with principal amount of up to HK$100,000,000 respectively at the
placing price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Loan Notes.
The Loan Notes will be matured on the day immediately preceding the
second anniversary of the relevant date of issue. The placing period
will last for a period of one year commencing from the day after the
respective date of the Placing Agreements. The Company has right to
early redeem, and the holders of the Loan Notes have right to request
the Company to redeem, all/part of the outstanding principal amount
of the Loan Notes on a day after the third month of the date of issue
of the Loan Notes and before the maturity date at an amount equal to

100% of the redeemed principal amount.

On 27 June 2016 and 27 July 2016, the Company issued the Loan
Notes in the principal amount of HK$25,000,000 and HK$8,000,000
respectively to independent third parties procured by Convoy.

The principal amount of Loan Notes in issue, less of transaction costs,
is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method
after initial recognition. The effective interest rate of the Loan Notes is
4.764%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-ZT—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

R & E R T R T -

2.75%-4.25%

N/A i
2015
—T—hF
HK$
7 7T

BEARFEMEEERBE(NREREEE
BERAR(REDREGESRGR QA
(BB HHERERE])IIR=_ZF—
ANERA+—BE-ZZ—A~"EAXNA=-tt
Az Eha((RERE) S
ERBREAXRAAR D BIRERE A (B
VE=ZF)RBARRFEHNERARISE(EE
FHEHEIMONEREZR(ERER]) -
A& FEH= 2 B A100,000,000% 7T © BBE
BHERERZEALEENI00% - ERE
BEREERBRTARE BT —H
I -ERENKBEEESHEASERSREAR
H—F - ARRGRIEFER  MERE
BRABABEERARGAIRERZEET
A% E=AARIHBEFHETERE
REBZE2H/BOAEE  SEEAER
EMER A% E 2100% °
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tA=Z++tH ANRRRFERERENEL
FE=FHBTAEEH R AH25000,0007% T
18,000,000 T2 EREIE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 38 78 MY 5T (continuea )
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—T—AF+_A=+—HILFE

28. DEFERRED TAX

The following are deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the

Group:

28.

i 3iE Bi 12

UTAAREERZECHARBREE

At 1 January 2015 R=Z—A%—A—H 127,804 (26,028) (34,343) (317,636) (250,203)
Charged/(credited) to profit or ~ FREEE KM/
loss for the year (note 14) (FEA) (B 3514) 26,352 26,028 (84,492) (98,999) (131,111)
At 31 December 2015 and R=ZZT—AF+=A
1 January 2016 =+—HBR
—E-R"FE-A—H 154,156 — (118,835) (416,635) (381,314)
Charged/(credited) to profit or £ REBEE DMK/
loss for the year (note 14) (Gt A) (BT E14) 25,253 - 118,835 (489,113) (345,025)
Transfer to liabilities directly BREASFRFE
associated with assets HEEEEZABMN
classified as held for sale B & (i #£25)
(note 25) (179,289) — — — (179,289)
At 31 December 2016 RZZT—R&F
+-A=+—H 120 — — (905,748) (905,628)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset)

for statement of financial position purposes:

TF A BT AR R AR T AR A IR A AR
(B85 18 KO DA

2015

—E—hF

HK$

7T

Deferred tax liabilities ELERIBEE 120 154,156
Deferred tax assets ELEFIBEE (905,748) (535,470)
(905,628) (381,314)

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses amounted to HK$2,100,955
(2015: HK$2,327,680) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

HEHR - AR A FEE R 2R & F SRR -
1% 4 34 B 08 85 482,100,955 T (—Z T —
% :2,327,6808B L) MRELERIBEE B
BEBAERRALESE -

—z—x¢4% 129



FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY T (continued @)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE-T—AF+_A=+—HIEFE

Authorised Issued and fully paid
BT ERTREZBAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at R=ZZE—HF—HF—H
1 January 2015 SREEIETLZ
LiEk 50,000,000,000 5,000,000,000 144,000,000 14,400,000
Issue of shares under rights issue BEEBRETRR
(note (a)) (i (@) = - 432,000,000 43,200,000
Capital reorganisation (note (b)) AR A 2 4R (F & (b)) 450,000,000,000 = = (51,840,000)
Issue of shares on placing (note (c)) FERETRN
(Bt 7 (c)) — — 28,800,000 288,000
Share consolidation (note (d)) A3 & B (B 2 () (250,000,000,000) — (302,400,000) —
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each at RZZE—RF+-A=+
31 December 2015 and —ARZZ—~F
1 January 2016 —A—BERE
180.028 7L 2 & 8 R
Issue of shares on placing (note (e)) BRERETRN
(Bt 55 (e)
Issue of shares under rights issue BEERETRN
(note (f)) (Bt & (F))
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each at RZE-—RFE+=A
31 December 2016 =T-HEREE
0.027 7T 2 & 8 I
Notes: B =
(a) Pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting of (a) BEARIAR-_FT—MOF+=_A=+MAH

the Company held on 24 December 2014, the issue by way of rights issue

on the basis of three rights shares of HK$0.1 each for every share in issue

and held on the record date (“1st Rights Issue”) at the subscription price

of HK$0.238 per rights share was approved.

On 2 February 2015, the 1st Rights Issue was completed and 432,000,000
rights shares of HK$0.1 each were allotted and issued. On the same day,

the premium on the issue of rights shares of HK$0.1 each amounting to
HK$59,616,000, net of share issue expenses amounting to HK$3,603,567,
was credited to the Company’s share premium account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= S 87 75 3R < MY 5T (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 %

Note: (Contd)

(b)

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 24 December 2014, the capital reorganisation (i) to
reduce the par value of each issued share of the Company from HK$0.1
to HK$0.01 by cancelling the capital paid-up thereon to the extent of
HK$0.09 on each of its issued shares and (i) to sub-divide the authorised
but unissued shares of HK$0.1 each into ten new shares of HK$0.01 each
(“Capital Reorganisation”) was approved.

On 2 March 2015, the Company announced that all conditions precedent
of the Capital Reorganisation had been fulfilled and the Capital
Reorganisation had become effective on 2 March 2015.

On 24 April 2015, the Company and Jun Yang entered into a placing
agreement in respect of the placing of a maximum of 28,800,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each to independent investors at a price of HK$0.288
per share. The placing was completed on 8 May 2015 and an aggregate
of 28,800,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued.
The premium on the placing of shares amounting to HK$8,006,400, net
of share issue expenses amounting to HK$415,632, was credited to the
Company’s share premium account.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 10 December 2015, every two issued and unissued
shares of the Company with par value of HK$0.01 each were consolidated
into one share with par value of HK$0.02 with effect from 11 December
2015. The consolidated shares rank pari passu in all respects with each
other.

On 17 December 2015, the Company and Jun Yang entered into a
placing agreement in respect of the placing of a maximum of 60,480,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each to independent investors at a price
of HK$0.174 per share. The placing was completed on 8 January 2016
and an aggregate of 60,480,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each were
allotted and issued. The premium on the placing of shares amounting to
HK$9,313,920, net of share issue expenses amounting to HK$402,518,
was credited to the Company’s share premium account.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 19 February 2016, the issue by way of rights issue on
the basis of nine rights shares of HK$0.02 each for every share in issue
and held on the record date (“2nd Rights Issue”) at the subscription
price of HK$0.127 per rights share was approved.

On 31 March 2016, the 2nd Rights Issue was completed and
3,265,920,000 rights shares of HK$0.02 each were allotted and issued. On
the same day, the premium on the issue of rights shares of HK$0.02 each
amounting to HK$349,453,440, net of share issue expenses amounting to
HK$9,293,748, was credited to the Company’s share premium account.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safequard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it,
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adopt various means such as payment of dividends,
issue new shares, raise new debts or redeem existing debts as may be
appropriate in the circumstances.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital plus net debt. Net
debt comprises borrowings and obligations under finance lease less bank
and cash balance. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity
(i.e. share capital, retained profits and other reserves).

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The externally imposed capital requirements for the Group are: (i) in
order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to have a public
float of at least 25% of the shares; and (ii) to meet financial covenants
attached to the interest-bearing borrowings.

The Group receives a report from the share registrars on a monthly
basis on substantial share interests showing the non-public float and
it demonstrates continuing compliance with the minimum 25% public
float requirement throughout the year. As at 31 December 2016,
34.15% (2015: 84.73%) of the shares were in public hands.

Any breach of the financial covenants by the Group may result in the
banks demanding for repayment of the loan. There had been no breach
of the financial covenants in respect of any interest-bearing borrowings
of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-ZT—"F+-_A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 7 S 84 7% ¥R 2 MY 2T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 Bl Z-_F— X "ET+-_A=1+—HILFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30. AT M AR KR # B E B
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY x)

(A)  STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (A AREHBHRRE
2015
—E—A0fF
Note HK$
B 5 B TT
Non-current asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RARIMIEE 150,000,789 150,000,001
Available-for-sale financial assets AREESRmEE 900,000 —
Total non-current assets IERBEERTE 150,900,789 150,000,001
Current assets mEEE
Prepayments, deposits and other ERNRIE - - EHek
receivables H i & W kI8 409,602 403,102
Due from subsidiaries & 5 Bf BB A B 3R IE 627,162,880 179,459,261
Bank and cash balances RITRIRSEH 93,055 37,864
Total current assets mENEE B 627,665,537 179,900,227
Current liabilities mEBaE
Accruals and other payables FE 5T & A K& E Ath FE -
IE 528,634 116,532
Due to subsidiaries JE 15 BS BB A B 5K T 20,241 19,453
Loan notes BEREER 32,873,178 —
Total current liabilities mBAELERE 33,422,053 135,985
Net current assets mEBEEFE 594,243,484 179,764,242
NET ASSETS BEEE 745,144,273 329,764,243
Capital and reserves BERREE
Share capital i@ 72,576,000 6,048,000
Reserves G 30(B) 672,568,273 323,716,243
TOTAL EQUITY EiREE 745,144,273 329,764,243
Approved by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2017 and are R-T—tF=ZA_ttAKEFS
signed on its behalf by: & WHTIESRKRES:
Tsang Yan Kwong Ho Siu Man
=R e ik 8%
Director Director
EZ EE
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RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Contaq)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements e PRI MY &

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—T—"E+-_A=1+—HBIFE

30.

5t (continued #)

RARMBRARBEERBR

==
=
o= )

B Anx

AR ED

Proposed
Share Capital Contributed Accumulated final
premium reserve surplus losses  dividend
BEAY
e Y itk (8 AXfEHE AR RitEBR
Note
At 1 January 2015 RZZE-1F
—A—H 112,865,637 138,279,615 = (41,922,581) — 209,222,671
Loss for the year FREE — - — (949,629) — (949,629)
Issue of shares under rights 1R 9% it A 2 17 AR 1D
issue 29(a) 59,616,000 — — — — 59,616,000
Share premium reduction & 47 )5 B R & (168,878,070) — 168,878,070 — — —
Capital reorganisation RAEH 29(b) — — 51,840,000 — — 51,840,000
Issue of shares on placing RERETRO 29(c) 8,006,400 — — — — 8,006,400
Share issue expenses BipETEY (4,019,199) — — — —  (4,019,199)
At 31 December 2015 and RZZ-HF+=A
1 January 2016 =+-BRk=-%
—~"E—-A—H 7,590,768 138,279,615 220,718,070  (42,872,210) — 323,716,243
Loss for the year FAER - — — (219,064) - (219,064)
Issue of shares on placing BREBETRM 29(e) 9,313,920 - - — — 9,313,920
Issue of shares under rights BE R ETRD
issue 29(f) 349,453,440 - - — — 349,453,440
Share issue expenses R 1D BATE X (9,696,266) — — - —  (9,696,266)
2016 proposed final dividend “E-RERK
RER S 17 — — (7,257,600) — 17,257,600 —
At 31 December 2016 RZZ—7
+-A=+-H 356,661,862 138,279,615 213,460,470 (43,091,274) 7,257,600 672,568,273
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 28 M 2 (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 %

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 72 and 75 of this annual report
respectively.

T*EE*i
E
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Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

Pursuant to an extraordinary general meeting passed
on 24 December 2014, the change of the domicile of
the Company from the Cayman Islands to Bermuda was
approved by the shareholders. The change of domicile of
the Company was completed on 5 February 2015. Under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company may be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

The capital reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
Group's reorganisation implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares in 2009 and represented
the difference between the nominal value of the aggregate
share capital of the subsidiaries acquired under the
reorganisation scheme, over the nominal value of the share

capital of the Company issued in exchange therefore.

The capital reserve of the Company arose as a result of the
Group reorganisation implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares in 2009 and represented
the excess of the consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired, over the nominal value of the share capital of
the Company issued in exchange therefore.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

The contributed surplus of the Group and the Company
arose as a result of the Group’s cancellation of the share
premium account of the Company as mentioned in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
capital reorganisation as mentioned in note 29(b) above.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed
surplus account is available for distribution to shareholders.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay dividend, or
make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

— the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

— the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than its liabilities.

The property revaluation reserve of the Group represents
the difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value of an owner-occupied property, which became an
investment property because its use had changed, at the
date of transfer. The revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits upon subsequent sale or
retirement of assets.

Annual Report 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 72 MY T (continued @)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-ZT—"F+-_A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %7 & B4 7% 38 28 M 2 (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HE—_Z—A"F+_A=+—HILFE

The Company operates a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's operations and
providing the Group with a more flexible means to reward, remunerate,
compensate and/or provide benefits to the eligible participants.
Eligible participants include full-time or part-time employees, directors
(including executive, non-executive or independent non-executive
directors) and any consultants or advisers (whether professional or
otherwise and whether on an employment or contractual or honorary
basis or otherwise and whether paid or unpaid), distributor, contractor,
supplier, service provider, agent, customer and business partner of the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries, who, at the sole determination
of the board of directors of the Company, have contributed to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries (“Eligible Participants”). The
Share Option Scheme was adopted on 24 November 2011 and, unless
otherwise terminated by the shareholders or the board of directors of
the Company, will remain in force for 10 years from the adoption date.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Group must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the
Company from time to time. The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Group must not,
in aggregate, exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the listing date of the Company (i.e. 13 December 2011). Such
10% is equivalent to 5,000,000 shares of the Company of par value
of HK$0.02 each which represents approximately 0.14% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this report.

Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company, the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each Eligible Participant (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company.
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject to
approval by all the independent non-executive directors (excluding any
independent non-executive director who is the grantee of the options).
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the total issued share capital of the
Company on the date of offer and having an aggregate value (based on
the price of the Company’s shares on the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, in any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

The offer of grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
such period as determined by the board of directors of the Company,
which period shall not be more than 14 days from the date of the offer.
Upon acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the
Company by way of consideration for the grant.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part at any time during a
period as may be specified by the board of directors of the Company,
the expiry date of such period not to exceed 10 years from the date
of grant of the option. Unless otherwise determined by the board
of directors of the Company, there is no general requirement on the
minimum period for which an option must be held or any performance
targets which must be achieved before an option can be exercised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued &)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-ZT—"F+-_A=+—HILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #3= S 87 75 3R < MY 5T (continued #)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZE=—FT—"F+-_A=+—HIFE

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the directors,
but may not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares on GEM as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the Company’s shares on the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or to vote
at shareholders’ meetings.

No options have been granted under the Share Option Scheme since
its inception.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had the following significant
contingent liabilities:

The Group’s external legal counsel advised that the Group’s loan
agreements which involve charging an interest rate at a rate more
than 48%, but less than 60% per annum shall be presumed to be
extortionate and such portion of extortionate interest is potentially
unenforceable as determined by the court. Subject to the court's
consideration of facts relevant to individual borrowers, this presumption
may be rebutted if the court, having regard to all circumstances, is
satisfied that such rate is not unreasonable or unfair. As at 31 December
2016, the Group’s maximum exposure to such legal risk comprised its
aggregate loans receivable of approximately HK$16.36 million (2015:
HK$21.15 million).
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FIRST CREDIT FINANCE GROUP LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %3 & 87 5% 38 2% MY 5T (continued #)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & & =

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(A)

—RNFTZA=tT—BRLEEFE

34, BEHNZH

AS LESSOR: (A ESEEA:
During the year ended 31 December 2016, one subsidiary of HE_ZT—R"F+-A=1+T—HILF
the Company leased out office premises to third parties under B BEBREEHENZH $”ﬂ*F§J
operating lease arrangements with negotiable lease terms ranging MEARKRAZEMELEFEL
from one to two years. =7 TT&%E@}FEE/H\HR’_:I:WQE o
At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease RZZE—R"F+TZA=+—0 &%
payments receivable under a non-cancellable operating leases as ) 15 7% 1 AT SH A T O P R R B
follows: KWHREHSBENBERET
2015
—T—RF
HK$
78 7T
Within one year —FR 262,500 405,000
In the second to fifth year, inclusive o
(BREEREME) — 202,500
262,500 607,500
AS LESSEE: (B) REMEA:

During the year ended 31 December 2016, one subsidiary of the
Company leased office premises for the Group under operating
lease arrangements with negotiable lease terms ranging from one
to two years. The rentals were fixed over the lease terms and
did not include contingent rentals.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments payable under a non-cancellable operating leases as

follows:

HE-ZT—RFT+ZA=+—HILF
E - BEBEEEHENTH A28 —H
MEBARARNEELHARAE - AlH
FANEESRAE—ZMF - HEHRA

ZHeBEENE  BTERFEXAME
RZB-—RE+-A=+—H &%

B AR 4 T AT SH AR S A A A R SR B
N&ERSEBHOBERAOT

2015

—T—RF

HK$

78 7T

Within one year —F R 921,683 434,858
In the second to fifth year, inclusive FE-EREF

(BEERMEF) 267,653 —

1,189,336 434,858
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %5 &S 87 7% 3R 78 FY 3T (continuea &)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE—T—A"F+_A=+—HILFE

In addition to those related party transactions and balances

disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had

the following material transactions with its related parties during

the year:

Interest income from a related company
(note)

Consideration received for the disposal of a
subsidiary to a related company (note)

Consideration received for the disposal
of property, plant and equipment to a
related company (note)

Advertising expenses to a related company
(note)

KE—EEERAF

PSS ON{ =)

A — R E AR L E A
MEBARMEKRE
(B =)

m—fHEEAREE
ME - BERZEDN
BB (B )

M- HEEARNES
FA 32 (Bt 5E)

B ite 5 B 75 Rk R LB B0 0 P BR 5
MBS R R EHR I AEE
FRNEEFETEATEARS

2015
—T—hF
HK$

7T
1,364,004
1,079,266
100,000

Note: The related company is National Arts Entertainment Limited, which

is indirectly wholly-owned by a company of which Mr. Sin Kwok

Lam, the chairman and a director of the Company, is a substantial

shareholder, chairman and director.

Loans to a related company (note)

m—fHEEARER
(ft 5E)

M ZBERRAEBREFRAF -
HARBEREREFT ABEMEE
EEIERR IFEREEN—
MRARRZKEZEHRS -

2015
—E—A8F
HK$
7 T
12,400,000

Note: The related company is National Arts Entertainment Limited, which

is indirectly wholly-owned by a company of which Mr. Sin Kwok

Lam, where the chairman and a director of the Company, is a

substantial shareholder, chairman and director. The loans to the

related party as at 31 December 2015 bear effective interest rate

of 11% per annum and were repaid on 8 April 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements #7 S 84 75 R 2 MY 5T (continued &)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE=-ZT—"F+-_A=+—HILFE

The Group had paid compensation to key management personnel
during the year as follows:

BHESRA

Short term employee benefits including
salaries, bonuses, paid annual leaves and

Post-employment benefits & 8 R K& T

The disposal of Techlink was completed on 20 February 2017,
details of which are included in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

On 5 October 2016, the Group entered into a share subscription
agreement with Asia Wealth Financial Holdings Limited (“Asia
Wealth"”), pursuant to which the Group agreed to subscribe for
one ordinary share with par value of US$1.00 in share capital
of Asia Wealth at the price of HK$900,000 (“First Share
Subscription”). The First Share Subscription was completed
during the year and the investment cost of HK$900,000 is
classified as available-for-sale financial assets as at year end
date. Details are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

On 8 November 2016, the Group entered into the second
share subscription agreement (“Second Share Subscription
Agreement”) with Asia Wealth, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to further subscribe for 79 ordinary shares with par value
of US$1.00 each in share capital of Asia Wealth at the price of
HK$79,100,000 (“Second Share Subscription”).

The consideration for the Second Share Subscription will be
payable by the Group at completion, which is subject to the
fulfillment of the conditions under the Second Share Subscription
Agreement. Upon the completion of the First Share Subscription
and the Second Share Subscription, the Group will in aggregate
hold approximately 88.89% of the enlarged share capital of Asia
Wealth and become the holding company of Asia Wealth. The
Second Share Subscription has not yet been completed at the
date of these financial statements.
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2015
—E-RF
HK$

BT
5,383,332
589,875
5,973,207
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% R & B 5% 25 o

RZZE-—R"FTARER A& EHE
Asia Wealth Financial Holdings Limited
([Asian Wealth]) &] 37 % 17 32 B&
& Bl AEEBELRE N
900,000/ 7T - R & Asia Wealth iR 2
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KRB  EARNRBEBZEERN
FRIER MK E K ZA900,0007 7T
REERBER/THELESREE -
& 8 B N AR A B RS R MY sE22 o

RZZE—AR"F+—ANE AEEH
Asia Wealths] 32 56 — 10 I 15 R B8 1
& (BRI eBEEmER]) - &t
A& B E R ELA79,100,000/8 7T © #
— & R B Asia Wealth I8 AN R 79f% &
BREE1.00E T EBAR (BRI
BEREE]) -

P KSR — IR R 1D R R 15 2 W R 1
AIRT  TEREAEEBEGFES
KB RERZNRE - THER
BHRERE_AEOREREZ K
& [E 15 #5 A Asia Wealth 4 18 K f& A&
& £ #4)88.89% * I fX & Asia Wealth
MIER AR - RETISRARBE - £=
KD RE M AT o



A summary of the financial results and the assets, liabilities and equity of
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the Group's
audited financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out below. This

summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

E-—EHEMEERRAF

Financial Summary 813 @ &

BEARBELEZY B HREMOOBEREYER
FEASBENMBEEAREE ABERERY
EEEEFNOHRENT - REEIX THEREEZ
FHHRO—HD -

¥ RE

2015 2014 2013 2012
—E—hF —T—NF —T—= —T—=fF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
& I 7T BT & I
Revenue, other income and U 25« E b Ut A BA B2
other gains and losses H i am Rk EE 81,191,777 68,404,224 59,839,009 60,736,968 60,729,831
Profit/(loss) before income tax & B 15 &% A & #1
(E518) 40,774,144 29,498,918 29,099,577 17,127,669 (29,904,423)
Income tax expense g R~ (7,127,652) (4,626,212) (4,101,899) (2,126,369) (88,009)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF L (BE) 33,646,492 24,872,706 24,997,678 15,001,300 (29,992,432)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ARARHEEAEERT
owners of the Company (E548) 33,646,492 24,872,706 24,997,678 15,001,300 (29,992,432)
S, 2.2
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE -BERER
2015 2014 2013 2012
—T—AHF —T—mmEF —E—=F —T——F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
7 TT I BT 7 TT
Total assets BERBE 1,023,527,303 488,912,017 423,479,509 367,809,693 316,557,314
Total liabilities BfEa%m (98,115,879) (12,746,179) (84,481,353) (71,765,763) (49,620,611)
925,411,424 476,165,838 338,998,156 296,043,930 266,936,703
Equity attributable to owners — ZNQ & #E G A FE(L %
of the Company 925,411,424 476,165,838 338,998,156 296,043,930 266,936,703
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SParticulars of Properties %) %

At 31 December 2016 RZ-ZZE—X<F+=-A=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Location

b 2

=

==
=]

REVMERPEALY

Attributable
interest to

Use Tenure the Group

R & HEH AEE GRS

Units 901-902, 9th Floor,
Far East Consortium Building,
121 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong

S

BB hI1215%
BERERKE
91£901-902

Units 903, 9th Floor,

Far East Consortium Building,
121 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong

HE

e B hI1215%
BERERKE

912903 %

Units 905-908, 9th Floor,
Far East Consortium Building,
121 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong

S

BB hI1215%
BERERKE
91£905-908 %
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Commercial Long lease 100%

[EES REIALD 100%

Commercial Long lease 100%

[EES EHALD 100%

Commercial Long lease 100%

[EES REIALD 100%
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